
                
 

 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 
January 19, 2016 - 7:30 p.m. 

 
City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed 
and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.                   
Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.                     
An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org and posted 
immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL   Mayor:  John Morris 
 Mayor Pro-Tem:  Jay Schaffer 
 Council:  Laura Brown 

 Mark Clark 
 Sherri Finn 
 Lance Homann 
 Brian Rudy 
 

 
4. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to 
address the City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so.  When you are 
recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City Council.    
Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your 
comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement and 
your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 5, 2016 
B. Ordinance No. 643-16 – Repealing, Relocating, and Consolidating Provisions 

of the Evans Municipal Code Relating to Various Economic Incentives 
(Second Reading)  

 
7. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Ordinance No. 642-16 – Adoption of Adjusted City Impact Fees (Second  
 Reading) 

 
 
 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 



8. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Emergency Ordinance No. 644-16 – Amending Chapter 16.04 of the Evans 

Municipal Code Regarding Flood Damage Prevention 
B. Emergency Ordinance No. 645-16 – Amending Chapter 1.14 of the Evans 

Municipal Code Concerning Certain Deadlines Related to the 2016 Evans 
Regular Municipal Council Election 

C. Resolution No. 08-2016 – Amending Resolution No. 06-2016 – Authorizing 
the Conduct of a Mail Ballot Election for the Regular Municipal Election 

D. Resolution No. 09-2016 – Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with 
the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Regarding the Widening 
of 35th Avenue between 37th Street and Prairie View Drive  

E. Resolution No. 10-2016 – Authorizing the Application for a Planning Grant 
from the Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) for a Feasibility Study 
for the Redesign of the Lower Latham Diversion Structure 

F. Approval of the 2016 Operating and Capital Costs for the Greeley Evans 
Transit (GET)  

 
9. REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
B. City Attorney 

 
10. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 

Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for 
procedures on addressing City Council. 

 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 

 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the community.” 



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   January 19, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   6.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of the Minutes of January 5, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 
PRESENTED BY:  City Clerk  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of minutes. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 
  
 



 

 

MEETING MINUTES 
EVANS CITY COUNCIL 

January 5, 2016 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Morris opened the public meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 

PLEDGE 
 

ROLL CALL    
 
Present:   Mayor Morris, Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer, Council Members Brown, 

Clark, Finn, Homann, and Rudy 
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to 
approve the Agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 22, 2015 
B. Resolution No. 01-2016 – Designation of Public Place for the Posting of Notices of 

Public Meetings 
C. Resolution No. 02-2016 – Rescheduling June 21st, 2016 and August 2nd, 2016 City 

Council Meetings 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 642-16 – Adoption of Adjusted City Impact Fees 
(First Reading) 
 
Mayor Morris re-opened the public hearing at 7:33 p.m. 

 
Scot Krob, City Attorney, stated that the Ordinance would adopt revise current 
impact fees and adopt new impact fees for future development in the City.  Mr. Krob 
explained that the City Council directed staff to undertake a review of the City’s 
methodology and approach to establishing impact fees ion 2014 and prepare a report 
and recommendation for possible modifications to the impact fee model.   
 
According to Mr. Krob, the firm of Tischler-Bise was selected to undertake this 
review.  Following several public work sessions, the City Council formally adopted 
the Impact Fee Study in October, 2015 with a final draft adopted November 16, 
2015.  That study detailed the assumptions, calculations, methodology and findings 
to establish amended impact fees for: 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
January 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 Fire/Rescue Services; 
 Parks, Recreation and Trails; 
 Transportation; and  
 Wastewater Service. 

 
Also, a new fee was being proposed in the study is an impact fee for Police 
Protection Services.  Additionally, two fees could not be updated at this time due to 
master plans in progress:  the Water impact fee and the Storm Water impact fee—
according to Mr. Krob.   
 
He explained that the Ordinance repeals certain sections of the existing Municipal 
Code and establishes a new Chapter 3.20: Impact Fees under Article 3, concerning 
Revenue and Finance to consolidate all the impact fee provisions in one location of 
the Code.  The ordinance also indicates that annual amendments to the impact fees 
will be made by resolution and adopted with the fee updates that occur after the 
budget is approval each year.  
 
Mayor Morris asked if there were any questions from the Council Members. 
 
Council Member Clark asked if the City impact fees where higher than surrounding 
municipalities. 

 
Sheryl Trent, City Economic Director, and Zach Ratkai, Flood Recovery/Building 
and Neighborhood Services Manager, discussed how the fees were established 
according to the study that Tischler-Bise conducted. 

 
   Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer asked about street impact fees. 
 

Council Member Homann asked about the fees were presented at previous work 
sessions and discussed the authority for the City Manager to apply credits in lieu of 
impact fees to a developer.  

 
Discussion ensued concerning the City applying credits in lieu of impact fees for 
capital improvements.  Aden Hogan, City Manager, provided a resent example where 
a credit was given to a developer for certain capital improvements.  

 
Council Member Homann asked about the cost for a single lot owner who wanted to 
construct a single home, which would cost $27,000 in new impact fees, and if a 
single lot owner would be eligible for credits.  
 
Mr. Krob explained that the fees is based on the incremental costs of development 
and the impact on City services.  
 
Mr. Hogan discussed the need for a legal nexus between the costs of development 
and the impact fees assessed. 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
January 5, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

Mr. Ratkai provided some recent examples of costs for single lots and didn’t think 
that a single home would qualify for impact fee credits. 
 
Mayor Morris asked for any testimony in support of the Ordinance—there was none. 
 
Mayor Morris asked for any testimony opposed to the Ordinance.  
 
Steve Bernardo, from Grapevine Hollow, asked if the fees would only be used for 
growth and not current infrastructure needs.  
 
Mr. Hogan explained that the fees would not be spent on current maintenance needs, 
but used for expansion of infrastructure to accommodate the growth. 
 
Mayor Morris closed the public hearing at 7:48 p.m. 
 
Council Member Clark discussed his opposition to the increase in impact fees in the 
City. 
 
Council Member Finn discussed her concerns with the impact fees, but explained 
why she is supporting the increase. 
 
Council Member Homann discussed his concern with the increase to impact fees in 
the City.  
 
Mayor Morris discussed his support to increase the fees in order to meet the 
infrastructure needs of future growth in the City.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Finn, to 
approve Ordinance No. 642-16 adopting adjusted City impact fees on first reading. 
The motion passed with a 5-2 roll call vote.  

    
Council Member Brown:  Aye 
Council Member Clark: Nay 
Council Member Finn: Aye 
Council Member Homann: Aye 
Council Member Rudy: Nay  
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer: Aye 
Mayor Morris: Aye 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Ordinance No. 643-16 – Repealing, Relocating, and Consolidating Provisions of 
the Evans Municipal Code Relating to Various Economic Incentives (First 
Reading) 
 

 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
January 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Ms. Trent discussed the need to adopt Ordinance No. 643-16 to consolidate various 
economic incentives in the Evans Municipal Code.  She explained that implementing 
the economic incentives covered by the Ordinance would create flexibility and 
responsiveness when dealing with new development in the City.  According to Ms. 
Trent, a Resolution would adopt the Economic Incentive Policies following the 
adoption of the Ordinance.  She explained that the policies were reviewed in detail 
by, and includes the collective recommendations of, the City’s business consultant 
and the Evans Economic Development Advisory Committee.   

 
Mayor Morris discussed his support for implementing the economic incentives. 
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 643-16 on first reading. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

  
 

B. Resolution No. 03-2016 – Adopting the City of Evans Economic Incentive 
Policies  

 
Ms. Trent discussed the need for the Resolution and the origin of the Economic 
Incentive Policies, which were crated to mirror the City’s Financial Incentives.     
Ms. Trent listed the specific types of incentive policies and referred Council to the 
application that will be provided to businesses in order to request economic 
incentives.   
 
Ms. Trent talked about the need to incentives: retail businesses, employment 
providers, and businesses willing to revitalize.  
 
Mayor Morris discussed his support for the economic incentives adopted by the 
Resolution. . 
    
Council Member Brown made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer, to 
adopt Resolution No. 03-2016 adopting the City of Evans economic incentive 
policies.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

C. Resolution No. 04-2016 – Adopting the City of Evans 2016 Financial Policies 
   
Jacque Troudt, presented the 2016 City Financial Policies, which were reviewed and 
recommend for adoption by the City Finance Committee.  
Mayor Morris thanked Ms. Troudt for updating the City Financial Policies and 
discussed his support for the Resolution. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to 
adopt Resolution No. 04-2016 – adopting the City of Evans 2016 Financial Policies. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
January 5, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

D. Resolution No. 05-2016 – Designating Certain Truck Routes within the City of Evans 
 

Ms. Trent discussed the authority to adopt truck routes by Resolution following the adoption 
of Ordinance No. 640-15.  Ms. Trent discussed the need for a specific truck route in East 
Evans to address truck traffic on 37th Street surrounding the new Riverside Library and 
Cultural Center.  
 
Council Member Finn asked about truck traffic in East Evans that was already occurring. 
 
Ms. Trent discussed the areas of East Evans that attract truck traffic and the attempt to re-
route some traffic by designating a truck route.  
 
Mayor Morris clarified the truck route that was being requested and suggested other roads in 
East Evans that may need a truck route while also considering the industrial areas that attract 
heavy truck traffic. 
 
Council Member Homann asked about other areas near 47th street to address oil and gas 
traffic. 
 
Ms. Trent agreed that other areas of the City could benefit from designated truck routes that 
could be added through the adoption of a Resolution. 
 
Council Member Homann made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to adopt 
Resolution No. 05-2016 designating certain truck routes within the City of Evans.  
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 

E. Resolution No. 06-2016 – Authorizing the Conduct of a Mail Ballot Election for the 
Regular Municipal Election scheduled for April 12, 2016 

 
   Raegan Robb, Evans City Clerk, presented Resolution 06-2016, which 

authorizes a mail ballot election for the City’s Regular Municipal Election and 
sets the election date for April 12, 2016 according the requirements in the Evans 
Home Rule Charter.   

   Mr. Robb explained that, according to Colorado Election law, cities and towns 
have the option of conducting elections by polling place or mail ballot, with the 
mail ballot option being authorized though Resolution.  According to Mr. Robb, 
the City has seen larger voter turnout numbers when conducting a mail ballot in 
past elections compared to a polling place election.   

 
Mayor Morris discussed his support for a mail ballot election for the City Council’s spring 
election.   



EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
January 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to adopt Resolution 
No. 06-2016 authorizing the conduct of a Mail Ballot Election for the Regular Municipal 
Election scheduled for April 12, 2016.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 

F. Resolution No. 07-2016 – Approval of the South Platte River Restoration 
Master Plan 

 
Chad Reischl, City Flood Planner, presented the Resolution and introduced Kacey 
Blum, who has been appointed as the coordinator of the South Platte River Alliance. 
Mr. Reischl introduced other members of the Alliance who were present.  
 
According to Mr. Reischl, the Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) 
approached the City of Evans, in mid-2014, with the concept of creating a restoration 
master plan for a 20+ mile stretch of the South Platte River in Weld County that was 
most heavily hit by the flooding in 2013.  The CWCB wanted a master plan for this 
portion of the river similar to those it was funding on other nearby, flood affected 
rivers such as the Big and Little Thompson Rivers.  The CWCB agreed to provide 
the funds for the project if Evans would manage the project and work toward 
creating a stakeholder alliance that would ultimately oversee the implementation of 
the plan.  Mr. Reischl requested the City Council’s support for the master plan.   
 
Council Member Homann, asked about the project description which included 
improvements to a bridge west of Greeley, and if it should read “east of Greeley.” 
 
Mr. Reischl stated that yes, it should read east. 
 
Mayor Morris discussed his support. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem made the motion, seconded by Council Member Homann, to adopt 
Resolution No. 07-2016 approving the South Platte River Restoration Master Plan.  
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

 
G. Amendment to the Employment Agreement with the City Manager 

 
Mr. Krob discussed the agenda item and distributed a revised version of the City Manager’s 
Employee Agreement.   
   
Mayor Morris discussed the reason the item was on the agenda for discussion under New 
Business, praised Aden Hogan, City Manager, for all his work, and concluded with remarks 
about supporting the City Manager through the amendment to his employee agreement.  
 
 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
January 5, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to approve 
the amendment to the Employment Agreement with the City Manager. 

   The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 

REPORTS 
A. City Manager 

 
Mr. Hogan, praised David Burns, City Emergency Management Coordinator and 
provided and update concerning Mr. Burns’ 2015 accomplishments for the City’s 
emergency preparedness.  
 
He discussed a letter from CDPHE / CDOT concerning a joint program conducted by 
the School District.  
 
Mr. Hogan also spoke about a proposed 700+ unit development scheduled for the 
summer of 2016.  
 
Lastly, he talked about his recent vacation and thanked the City Council for their 
support during 2015. 

 
 

B. City Attorney 
 

Provided an update on new election requirements being implemented by the federal 
Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act (UOCAVA), which provides 
that mail ballots be mailed 45 days prior to an election.  Mr. Krob discussed the need 
for an Ordinance to align City Code with UOCAVA if that is the direction provided 
by City Council. 
 
The Council Members agreed to have Mr. Krob draft an Ordinance to comply with 
the requirements under UOCAVA.   

 
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
  There was no audience participation.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

A. For a Conference with the City Attorney for the Purpose of Receiving Legal 
Advice on Specific Legal Questions, Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b); and for 
the Purpose of Determining Positions Relative to Matters Subject to 
Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations, and Instructing Negotiators, 
Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e) 

 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL  
January 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem made the motion, seconded by Council Member Finn, to adjourn 
into executive session for the purpose of determining positions relative to matters 
subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing 
negotiators, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e).   
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
The executive session convened at 8:29 p.m.  
 
The executive session adjourned at 8:44 p.m.  
 
Mr. Krob entered into the record that the reason for the Executive Session was 
satisfied according to the referenced state law and covered under attorney client 
privilege. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
   The regular meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE: January 19, 2016  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  6.B 
 
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 643-16 – AMENDING THE EVANS CITY CODE 

BY REPEALING, RELOCATING, AND CONSOLIDATING THE 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO VARIOUS ECONOMIC INCENTIVES 

 
      
PRESENTED BY:  Sheryl Trent, Economic Development Director   
  
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
As a part of our Evans Municipal Code Update as well as our continued improvements in working 
with our business community, staff is proposing that incentives be adopted by Resolution, which will 
create flexibility and responsiveness when dealing with new location and development in Evans.  To 
create that responsiveness, the sections of the Evans Municipal Code that deal with economic 
incentives must be repealed, and then placed into the Economic Incentives Policy, and finally 
adopted by Resolution. 
 
This Ordinance is the first step of repealing the three sections of the code that specifically address 
economic incentives:  3.17, 3.30 and 3.31.  These sections were written into the proposed Economic 
Incentives Policy which is also on the agenda this evening. 
 
A full copy of the code sections to be repealed is attached to this report. 
 
Should the City Council approve this Ordinance a Resolution has also been proposed to adopt the 
Economic Incentive Policies.  The Incentive Polices were reviewed in detail by both our business 
consultant and the Evans Economic Development Advisory Committee and includes the collective 
recommendations of these individuals.  As a part of our business survey, several questions were 
asked around the issue of incentives and that feedback has also been incorporated. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
N/A 
______________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the Ordinance.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

I move to adopt Ordinance No. 643-16 on second reading. 
I move to deny adoption of Ordinance No. 643-16. 























CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   643-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EVANS CITY CODE BY REPEALING THE 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO VARIOUS INCENTIVES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council believes that a great city provides a strong and positive 
foundation for its business community; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council strives to work collaboratively with our business 
community to ensure long-term positive outcomes for all parties; and  
  
 WHEREAS, economic incentive policies stimulate the general economic well-being of 
the City, thus providing the foundation of funding required for the provision of City services that 
benefit both the public and private sector; and  
 
 WHEREAS, economic expansion also generates employment opportunities that lead to 
higher quality of life and greater economic opportunities for residents of the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to improve flexibility of the City when working with 
the business community,  and desires to direct City management personnel to follow standards for 
the prudent investment of City incentives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council concludes that such flexibility can best be accomplished by 
repealing the provisions of the City Code that relate to incentives and adopting such incentives by 
resolution rather than ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to provide economic incentive policies for the 
foundation of the City’s long term financial sustainability and to encourage the location of new 
businesses and the expansion of existing businesses within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the amendments to the Evans 
City Code as contained herein, are necessary and designed for the purpose of promoting the 
health, safety, convenience, order, prosperity and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of 
the City of Evans and are consistent with the City’s goals, policies and plans, including the 
City’s master plan documents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the legislative action of adopting the provisions 
set forth in this ordinance is necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the City’s 
residents and visitors. 
 
  
 
 



 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
PART 1:   AMENDMENT TO CITY CODE.  The City Code of the City of Evans, Colorado is 
hereby amended by repealing the following provisions of the existing City Code: 
 

a. Chapter 3.17, regarding Development Revenue Bonds; 
 

b. Chapter 3.30, regarding Economic Development Incentive Plans; and 
 

c. Chapter 3.31, regarding Enhanced Sales Tax Incentive Program (“ESTIP”). 
 
 
PART 2:  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City of Evans 
hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause 
or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses and phrases thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional.  
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 5TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2016. 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
 Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON A SECOND READING THIS 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, 
2016.  
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:  January 19, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7.A 

 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 642-16 – Adoption of Adjusted City Impact Fees             

(2nd Reading)   
 
PRESENTED BY: Scott Krob, City Attorney 
   Sheryl Trent, Economic Development Director 
   Jessica Gonifas, Deputy City Manager 
              
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
In 2014, in the context of reviewing the proposed budget, the City Council directed staff to undertake 
a review of the City’s methodology and approach to establishing impact fees and prepare a report and 
recommendation for possible modifications to the impact fee model.  After a Request for Proposal 
process, the firm of Tischler-Bise was selected to undertake this review.  Following several public 
work sessions, the City Council formally adopted the Impact Fee Study in October of 2015.  A few 
changes have been made to that Study, and the final draft, dated November 16, 2015, is attached to 
and incorporated as a part of this Ordinance. 
 
That study detailed the assumptions, calculations, methodology and findings to establish amended 
impact fees for: 
 

• Fire/Rescue Services; 
• Parks, Recreation and Trails; 
• Transportation; and  
• Wastewater Service. 

 
One new fee is being proposed in the study:  a Police Protection Services impact fee.  Additionally, 
two fees could not be updated at this time due to master plans in progress:  the Water impact fee and 
the Storm Water impact fee.  At such time as those studies are completed we will update those fees 
with the City Council.  Although the Tischler/Bise study addressed Waste Water impact fees, those 
fees are not included in this ordinance, but are being addressed by separate resolution, as Waste 
Water is an enterprise. 
 
The Ordinance repeals certain sections of the existing Municipal Code and establishes a new Chapter 
3.20: Impact Fees under Article 3: Revenue and Finance to consolidate all the impact fee provisions 
in one location.  The ordinance also indicates that annual amendments to the impact fees will be 
made by resolution and adopted with the fee updates that occur after budget approval by the City 
Council. 
 
While a red line of the old ordinance sections has been provided for your review, due to the large 
number of changes, the redline may be of limited use.  This project entailed two main areas of focus: 
 



1)  Consolidating into one area repetitive language such as purpose, collection of fees, 
appropriate uses of fees, and so on.  This eliminated redundancies and makes the code easier 
to read and more consistent for each fee. 

 
2) Eliminating outdated or unnecessary sections of the code.  As the Council has directed, staff 

is working on the code to make it more responsive to the needs of our business owners, and 
more adaptable and flexible where appropriate.  Therefore some sections of the code that 
went into great detail are now less restrictive and the City Manager and City Council have a 
greater ability to discuss the needs of the developer. 

 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  
 
The adoption of this ordinance also amends the code to reflect the fees as recommended in the study. 
In some cases those fees are higher and in some cases they are lower than current fees.                      
The newly recommended Police Impact Fee will be an additional fee.  
 
In general, Development Impact Fees continue to be a major source in support of the City’s capital 
improvement plan, with several million in costs identified for specific projects and tens of millions 
in additional potential improvements. The annual budget does not anticipate annual impact fee 
revenues until they are received and audited.  These revenues may be revised as the City re-assesses 
its growth plans, related infrastructure requirements and impact fee structure.  
  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the following to City Council:  
 
Approve Ordinance No. 642-16 adopting the new impact fees to be implemented when Ordinance 
No. 642-16 goes into effect and amended annually thereafter during the budget process by 
Resolution. 
  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “I move to approve Ordinance No. 642-16 on second reading.” 

“I move to deny Ordinance No. 642-16 on second reading.” 
 “I move to deny the approval of Ordinance No. 516-11 on first reading.” 
  



 
 

  Page 1 

CHAPTER 15.50 - Fire/Rescue Impact Fees  

 

15.50.010 - Fire Stations and Apparatus - City Council authority.  

The City Council may acquire, accept dedications and gifts of, develop and maintain fire stations and 
apparatus.  

 

Need to add something about how the City can collect impact fees on behalf of the Fire District per the 
Service Agreement dated xxxxx 

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.020 - Purpose.  

In order to provide or to assist in providing the financing required to acquire, develop and maintain fire 
stations and apparatus, the fire/rescue impact fees shall be established by the City Council by ordinance 
to be paid by property owners desiring to develop property with improvements.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.030 - Fire/rescue impact fee study.  

The City commissioned a study in July, 2002dated November 16, 2015 to update the amounts charged 
by the Fire/Rescue Impact Fee.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.040 - Calculation of fees.  

The fees calculated in the 2002 2015 study are directly related to the capital requirements likely to be 
imposed on the Fire Department District in order to serve new growth at service levels consistent with those 
currently found in the community.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.050 - Paid with building permit.  

Fire/rescue impact fees shall be due when the building permit fee is paid.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.060 - Waiver authorized when.  

The City Council may waive the requirement of the fire/rescue impact fees otherwise payable by any 
property owner who is willing to transfer to the City a parcel of land, if the City Council determines:  

A. That the parcel of land is suitable for fire station location purposes; 

Commented [ST1]: This is general language that we kept, 
but not unique to each fee. 

Commented [ST2]: The purpose is now standard across 
all fees and not separated by each fee 

Commented [ST3]: Council will note that the Impact Fee 
Study is referenced for all the fees nowl 

Commented [ST4]: Some version of this is standard 
across all the fees and is referenced by CRS. 

Commented [ST5]: This is standard across all the fees, so 
you will note this language is included 

Commented [ST6]: Waiver are now addressed in general, 
not specifically to any impact fee. 



 
 

  Page 2 

B. That the person otherwise obligated to pay the fire/rescue impact fee is the fee simple owner of the 
parcel and has marketable title thereto; and  

C. That the market value of the parcel exclusive of all liens and encumbrances is equal to or greater than 
the total fire/rescue impact fee that otherwise would be payable.  

D.  That the Fire Distrrict Board has taken formal action to approve of the waiver and has made a 
recommendation in writing to the City Council to do so. 

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.070 - Disposition of funds.  

A. Except as hereinafter provided, all fire department impact fees shall be credited to a separate fund, to 
be known as the "Fire/Rescue Impact Assessment Fund."  

B. Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit the City Council from appropriating funds from the general 
revenues of the City for acquisition, development and maintenance of fire stations and apparatus.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.080 - Applicability of new fee amounts.  

This fee shall apply to all building permits issued and paid for after the effective date of this ordinance. 
Any building permit application shall not be considered complete unless and until (1) all of the required 
information and submittal materials, in the amounts and dimensions required by this code, have been 
submitted to and received by the city department or official specified in this code; and (2) the Planning 
Division has certified the application as complete. The decision of the Planning Division with respect to 
completeness and applicability of submittal requirements shall be final.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.090 - Eligibility for impact fee credits.  

If developers construct or provide any fire/rescue facilities or equipment which would serve new growth 
within the City's impact fee study area commissioned in July 2002per the study dated November 16, 2015, 
they may apply to receive an appropriate credit equal to the dollar amount of the facilities or equipment 
provided, not to exceed the total amount of impact fees they would have been required to pay under the 
existing fee schedule.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

15.50.100 - Fire/Rescue Department Impact Fees.  

Effective January 1, 2014, the Fire/Rescue Impact Fees shall be as follows:  

Fire/Rescue Department Impact Fees  

Each residential unit other than a motel or 
hotel. 

$805.00 per dwelling unit 

Commented [ST7]: Again, the new language groups all 
the fees into their separate funds. 

Commented [ST8]: Credits have been streamlined and 
made more responsive and adaptable to situations as posed 
by the developer.  They are no longer unique to each fee,. 

Commented [ST9]: Each fee is pulled out as listed in the 
new Impact Fee Study. 



 
 

  Page 3 

Nonresidential uses, but including a motel or 
hotel. *  

$0.46 per square foot of each floor level of the 
building area 

I’m thinking we just want to reference the study instead of list them in the ordinance?  I don’t 
really care…..  

* Exception: any detached accessory structure related to a single-family residential use.  

Annually, the fees will be updated by Resolution to reflect inflation, as reflected in the Engineering News 
Record Construction Index.  

(Ord. 577-13 §2; Ord. 529-11: 504-10: 477-09: 458-08: 417-07: 389-06: 357-05: 303-04: 245-
03: 168-02; Ord. 544-12 §2)  

15.50.110 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter is guilty of a violation of this chapter and 
shall be punished as provided in Section 1.16.010 of this Code.  

(Ord. 168-02) 

CHAPTER 15.52 - Park Development Impact Fees  

 

15.52.010 - Parks and playgrounds — City Council authority.  

The City Council may acquire, accept dedications and gifts of, develop and maintain areas for City 
parks, trails and open space.  

(Ord. 181-02: 361-77) 

15.52.020 - Park fees - purpose.  

In order to provide or to assist in providing the financing required to acquire, develop and maintain City 
parks, trails and open space, Park Impact Fees are established by the City Council by Ordinance 
REsolution to be paid by property owners desiring to develop property.  

(Ord. 181-02: 1109-98: 901-94: 596-84: 361-77) 

15.52.030 - Park impact fee study.  

The City commissioned a Parks and Recreation Master Plan, which included an impact fee study in 
March of 2000, and an Impact Fee Study dated November 16, 2015 to update the amounts charged for the 
Park Development Impact Fee.  

(Ord. 181-02) 

Commented [ST10]: This is also common to all the 
Impact Fees, although the index might be different for each 
one as specified in the new ordinance. 

Commented [ST11]: Violations are all grouped and not 
unique. 

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [ST12]:   

Commented [ST13R12]:  



 
 

  Page 4 

15.52.040 - Calculation of fees.  

The fees calculated in the 2000 2015 study are directly related to the capital requirements likely to be 
imposed on the Parks and Recreation Department services  in order to serve new growth at service levels 
consistent with those currently found in the community.  

(Ord. 181-02) 

15.52.045 - Park Development Impact Fees - schedule of amounts.  

 Effective January 1, 2014, the Park Development Impact Fees shall be as follows:  

A. For each single-family dwelling, four thousand six hundred four dollars ($4,604.00); 

B. For each dwelling unit in a duplex, apartment building, or in any other residential structure other than 
a motel or hotel, four thousand six hundred four dollars ($4,604.00);  

C. For each space in a mobile home park or community, four thousand five hundred sixteen dollars 
($4,516.00);  

D. Exception: Any detached accessory structures related to residential uses described in Subsections A 
through C as listed above shall be exempt from this fee.  

 

Again, should we list them here?  Or refer to the study? 

(Ord. 577-13 §3; Ord. 544-12 §3; Ord. 529-11: 477-09: 458-08: 417-07: 391-06: 359-05: 302-04: 
240-03: 183-02)  

15.52.050 - Park fees - paid with building permit.  

Park fees shall be due when the building permit fee is paid.  

(Ord. 181-02: 361 77) 

15.52.060 - Waiver authorized when.  

The City Council may waive the requirement of park fees otherwise payable by any property owner 
who is willing to transfer to the city a parcel of land, if the City Council determines:  

A. That the parcel of land is suitable for park purposes; 

B. That the parcel of land is above and beyond the required park land dedication requirements as 
stipulated in Chapter 16.42 of this Code.  

C. That the person otherwise obligated to pay the park impact fee is the fee simple owner of the parcel 
and has marketable title thereto; and  

D. That the market value of the parcel exclusive of all liens and encumbrances is equal to or greater than 
the total park impact fee that otherwise would be payable.  

(Ord. 181-02: 361 77) 

15.52.070 - Disposition of funds.  



 
 

  Page 5 

A. Except as hereinafter provided, all park fees shall be credited to a separate fund, to be known as the 
"Park Development Impact Fund."  

B. Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit the City Council from appropriating funds from the general 
revenues of the City for acquisition, development and maintenance of parks, trails and open space.  

(Ord. 181-02: 361 77) 

15.52.080 - Applicability of new fee amounts.  

This fee shall apply to all building permits issued and paid for after the effective date of this fee 
adoption. Any building permit application shall not be considered complete unless and until (1) all of the 
required information and submittal materials, in the amounts and dimensions required by this code, have 
been submitted to and received by the city department or official specified in this code; and (2) the Planning 
Division has certified the application as complete. The decision of the Planning Division with respect to 
completeness and applicability of submittal requirements shall be final.  

(Ord. 181-02) 

15.52.090 - Eligibility for impact fee credits.  

If developers construct or provide any park facilities or equipment, utilizing acceptable design and 
construction methods approved by the Director of Parks and Recreation and adhering to any applicable 
sections of Chapter 16.42 of the Evans Municipal Code, which would serve new growth within the City, they 
may apply to receive an appropriate credit equal to the dollar amount of the facilities or equipment provided, 
not to exceed a total amount of a calculated percentage of impact fees they would have been required to 
pay under the existing fee schedule.  

(Ord. 181-02) 

15.52.100 - Updating fees for inflation.  

Annually, the fees will be updated and adjusted, by ordinanceresolution, to reflect inflation utilizing the 
most recent factor in the most recent period for which figures are available from the Consumer Price Index 
for the Denver-Boulder-Greeley area.  

(Ord. 181-02) 

15.52.110 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter is guilty of a violation of this Chapter and 
shall be punished as provided in Section 1.16.010 of this Code.  

(Ord. 181-02: 842-92: 361-77) 

CHAPTER 16.40 - Parks  

 

16.40.010 - Administration of public parks by Director of Parks and Recreation - appointment.  



 
 

  Page 6 

The construction, development, planning, operation and maintenance of public parks in the City shall 
be under the administration of the Director of Parks and Recreation. The Director of Parks and Recreation 
shall be appointed by the City Manager.  

(Ord. 1150-99; Ord. 768-90; Ord. 595 84) 

16.40.020 - Closed hours of parks - designated.  

All public parks within the City shall be closed to the public between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 
a.m.  

(Ord. 652 86; Ord. 595 84) 

16.40.030 - Closed hours of parks - posting notices.  

The Director of Parks and Recreation shall post notices at the entrances of all City parks in 
conspicuous places therein in conformity with the provisions of this Chapter as to closing hours, sufficient 
to inform the public of the closing hours in such parks.  

(Ord. 369-06; Ord. 595 84) 

16.40.040 - Closed hours of parks - violation unlawful - exceptions.  

It is unlawful for any person to be within the parks between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
unless travel on park streets therein is necessary for through traffic for those residing in areas adjoining 
such parks or unless on occasions or events of a public nature for which a permit has been previously 
granted by authority of the City. This prohibition shall not extend to persons employed within such parks or 
to persons who have obtained permission, in writing, from the Director of Parks and Recreation for entry 
into parks during such hours.  

(Ord. 369-06; Ord. 1150-99; Ord. 652 86; Ord. 595 84) 

16.40.050 - Vandalism and interference with facilities or vegetation unlawful.  

It is unlawful for any person to injure, damage, remove, deface or destroy any City park facility, tree, 
shrub, vine, flower or other property within any City park or to commit any act of vandalism therein.  

(Ord. 595 84) 

16.40.060 - Orderly conduct required - certain behavior prohibited.  

All persons making use of any public park in the City shall at all times conduct themselves in an orderly 
manner and shall not disport themselves in a loud, boisterous or unseemly manner or in such fashion as to 
disturb, be offensive to or annoy other users of such park or residents adjacent thereto.  

(Ord. 595 84) 

16.40.070 - Glass containers prohibited.  

It is unlawful for any person to bring, use or possess a glass container in a public park within the City.  



 
 

  Page 7 

(Ord. 652 86) 

16.40.080 - Alcohol restricted - public parks and facilities.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to serve, consume or have any open container of alcoholic 
beverages within the Riverside Park Ball Fields and the adjacent parking area without the issuance of a 
special permit. It is also unlawful for any person to serve, consume or have any open container of alcoholic 
beverage (except as permitted by Section 12-47-411(3.5),C.R.S., for vinous liquor) when on, in or using, 
by conveyance or otherwise, any public street, parking lot, alley, park, public place, avenue or sidewalk 
within the City, with the exception that alcoholic beverages with six percent (6%) or less alcohol content 
may be consumed in the parks of the City (outside the Riverside Park Ball Fields and adjacent parking 
area) and with the exception that alcohol may be consumed upon issuance of a special permit within the 
confines of the Evans Community Complex. (See also Subsections 5.08.230A and 5.08.230B of this 
Chapter). Any consumption of alcohol at the Evans Community Complex or within Riverside Park Ball Fields 
and its adjacent parking area will be restricted to approved City issued permit holders and such permit 
holders shall follow all rules and regulations set forth at the Complex and all other applicable laws pertaining 
to the consumption of alcohol in the City.  

(Ord. 292-04; Ord. 022-00; Ord. 1044-97) 

16.40.090 - No smoking at Riverside Park Ball Fields.  

As provided in Section 8.18.030 of this Code, and in order to reduce the levels of exposure to 
environmental tobacco smoke, smoking shall not be permitted and no person shall smoke in any area within 
the fenced area of the Riverside Park Ball Fields.  

(Ord. 427-08) 

16.40.100 - No open fires.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to start or maintain an open fire except in designated receptacles 
provided in the park by the City and except for persons employed within such parks by the City or to persons 
who have obtained permission, in writing, from the Fire Chief and the Director of Parks and Recreation.  

(Ord. 1150-99; Ord. 768-90) 

16.40.110 - No boating or swimming - variance provision.  

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to use any type of boat, floatation device or inflatable boat on any 
City lake. It shall further be unlawful for any person to swim, wade or enter the water at any City lake.  

B. Application for a variance to this Section shall be submitted to the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
Such application shall include a statement setting forth the nature and extent of the requested 
variance, together with evidence supporting need for such variance. Once a completed application for 
a variance has been submitted to and heard by the Parks and Recreation Commission, its 
recommendation shall be forwarded to the City Council for consideration and final decision at the next 
regular council meeting.  

(Ord. 1150-99; Ord. 768-90) 

16.40.111 - Dogs in parks.  



 
 

  Page 8 

It shall be unlawful for any dog to be in any public lake or body of water and will be considered a public 
nuisance when in any lake or body of water. Controlled dogs are allowed on City-owned parks, trails and 
open space. A controlled dog must be on a leash ten (10) feet or less in length, attached to the dog and 
held by or tied to a person (see also Section 6.04.020, "Control required - running at large prohibited" of 
this Code). Any owner, taking the animal upon any public way or other public property in the City, shall 
immediately remove or cause to be removed and lawfully dispose of all fecal matter left on such property 
by the animal (see also Section 6.04.130, "Animal defecation - owner responsibility" of this Code).  

(Ord. 426-08; Ord. 369-06) 

16.40.112 - Off-leash dog park.  

Dogs may be allowed off-leash only within designated off-leash dog parks in the City. Dogs must be 
under voice control and in sight of the owner at all times and owners must follow all posted rules and 
regulations while in the dog park. Any owner, taking the animal in to any dog park, shall immediately remove 
or cause to be removed and lawfully dispose of all fecal matter left on such property by the animal.  

(Ord. 426-08) 

16.40.120 - Violation - penalty.  

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter is guilty of a violation of this Chapter and 
shall be punished as provided in Section 1.16.010 of this Code.  

(Ord. 842-92; Ord. 768-90) 

CHAPTER 16.42 - Regulations for Dedication of Land and/or Payment of Fees for Public Park Land in 
Subdivisions  

 

16.42.010 - Intent.  

This Section is intended to provide adequate sites for the location of public park land necessitated by 
the impacts created by new development. Such sites may be dedicated to the City or a homeowner's 
association for eventual construction and maintenance. The intent is to require appropriate mitigation in 
proportion to the impacts being created by new development. It is further the intent of this Section to have 
dedicated park land as the highest priority although a cash-in-lieu process is identified. An annexation 
agreement and/or developer's agreement, when appropriate, will outline the specific requirements 
pertaining to this Section and specifics as to land dedication and/or cash-in-lieu for land. This Section is in 
addition to park development impact fees, of which said fees are to be used for the design and construction 
of park lands.  

(Ord. 370-06; Ord. 111-01; Ord. 045-00) 

16.42.020 - General requirements.  

The developer shall provide, at no cost to the City, for the construction of all roads adjacent to the park 
area being platted in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, including all roads adjoining publicly 
dedicated park sites, traffic signalization to serve the site, extensions of all utilities to the site and other 
public infrastructure as required by the City Council. Security needed to ensure such improvements shall 

Commented [ST14]: Staff is reviewing 16.42 as part of 
this discussion.  The intent is to provide for streamlined 
procedures that are more responsive and adaptable to the 
needs of the development 



 
 

  Page 9 

be required prior to the issuance of any building permits. All park and trail development and facilities shall 
conform to the standards and criteria as outlined in the City of Evans Parks, Trails and Recreation Master 
Plan, as amended.  

A. Parks, trails and open land. Whenever land is proposed for residential subdividing, or if land is replatted 
which would add to, or change, the original residential impact, the developer shall provide land or cash-
in-lieu of land for active and specialized recreation generated by the proposed use. In general, these 
lands shall be suitable for the development of active play areas, trails or in some instances to serve to 
preserve unique land forms or natural areas. Where no suitable land is available in a development, 
cash-in-lieu of land or the equivalent monetary value or the donation of recreation facilities may be 
substituted at the City's discretion. Additional dedication for open land may be required by the City if 
deemed necessary to preserve areas of special significance.  

1. The following formula is used to calculate the minimum amount of land dedication required in 
residential developments by the City, which is deemed necessary to provide adequate land for 
parks. This formula is based upon a total of six and one-quarter (6.25) acres of developed park 
land per one thousand (1,000) population as recommended in the City of Evans Parks, Trails and 
Recreation Master Plan. Furthermore, for purposes of population impact, each residential unit is 
assumed to house an average of two and nine-tenths (2.9) individuals per unit (2000 U.S. Census 
figures).  

3.5 ac of neighborhood with a minimum size of 6.0 acres or 2.75 ac of community parks with a minimum 
size of 25.0 acres:  

Neighborhood Park = Dwelling units x 0.010 acres/unit  

Community Park = Dwelling units x 0.0080 acres/unit  

B. The City reserves the right to adjust the acreage requirement between neighborhood and community 
park categories as deemed necessary to meet specific needs and to determine the amount of 
developed park acreage required based upon recommendations by the Parks and Recreation 
Department/ Commission.  

1. Within nonresidential developments (commercial, industrial, etc.) provision of park facilities is 
encouraged.  

2. For the purposes of calculating the required dedication, existing dwelling units within a subdivision 
shall be excluded from the calculation of the park requirement.  

3. Land proposed for park dedication shall be clearly identified on any submitted plat including the 
number of acres for each site and the total acreage proposed for City park dedication within the 
project.  

4. The conveyance of dedicated park land to the City shall be by general warranty deed and title 
commitment and the title shall be free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, including real 
property taxes completed to the time of conveyance. Dedicated park land shall include the 
necessary water rights or other available water service to provide for irrigation and drinking water. 
Community and neighborhood park land shall be conveyed at the time of recordation of the final 
plat for the area served by the community and neighborhood parks as defined in the City of Evans 
Parks, Trails and Recreation Master Plan.  

5. The City shall assume all responsibility for development of all land dedicated for parks and trails, 
unless otherwise determined by the City and the developer. If the developer elects to develop the 
park, a park site master plan, as designed by a professional landscape architect, shall be 
submitted to the City for approval prior to the time of final plat submittal and will be identified in a 
developer's agreement. Upon approval of the park plan by the City, cost estimates and 
construction documents shall be submitted along with all other necessary information for 
construction. The park site shall be constructed in accordance with City standards and 
specifications and as outlined in an approved developer's agreement. In addition, the developer 
shall provide to the City a letter of credit until all of the improvements are completed.  



 
 

  Page 10 

(Ord. 370-06; Ord. 111-01; Ord. 045-00) 

16.42.030 - Cash-in-lieu.  

Cash-in-lieu for off-site land dedication may be used in cases in which the cash value of park land 
dedication and park development costs is deemed, by the City, to be more appropriate in satisfying the 
needs of the residents of the proposed development. Such cases include, but are not limited to, small 
developments not able to meet the minimum size requirement and developments which already have 
adjacent facilities that could be expanded to satisfy the need created by the proposed development. In 
those subdivisions where proposed regional trails are located, no cash-in-lieu of land will be accepted 
unless there is an acceptable alternate route, as determined by the City, which is compatible with the 
City of Evans Parks, Trails and Recreation Master Plan.  

A. The cash-in-lieu for land dedication and park development costs fee shall be determined by the 
following process:  

1. The City Parks and Recreation Department shall review all cash-in-lieu for land and recommend 
a course of action to the Building Division prior to the issuance of any building permits.  

2. The City shall make a final determination of the method in which the dedication requirements 
shall be satisfied.  

3. When cash-in-lieu for land dedication and park development costs is requested by the City, the 
following formula shall be used:  

Total acreage for dedication $ Value/acre as determined Dedication 

as cash-in-lieu by market value $ amount required 

  

4. When a combination of land and cash-in-lieu for land is requested by the City, the following 
formula shall be used:  

Total park dedication 
in acres required as 
calculated by formula 

(divided by) Land acreage accepted = 
Total acreage for 
dedication 
as cash-on-lieu 

 
    

Total acreage for 
dedication 
as cash-in-lieu 

(multiplied by) 
$ Value/acre as 
determined by 
market value 

= 
Dedication $ amount 
required 

Commented [ST15]: This is a section that has been 
streamlined in the new ordinance and applied for various 
impact fees, not just one specific type 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left



 
 

  Page 11 

  

5. The cash-in-lieu fee shall be equivalent to the full market value of the acreage required for park 
land dedication. Value shall be based on the anticipated market value of the land being developed after 
completion of platting and construction of public improvements. The City shall determine the value for 
each approved cash-in-lieu project. If the fee is disputed, the applicant shall submit a proposal for the 
cash-in-lieu fee and supply the information necessary for the City to evaluate the adequacy of the 
proposal. Such submittal shall include at least one (1) appraisal of similar property within the 
development being reviewed, paid for the developer, by a qualified appraiser approved by the City. The 
Parks and Recreation Department shall recommend, to the Building Division, a final cash-in-lieu amount 
to be collected by the City.  

6. The cash-in-lieu fee for single-family dwellings and duplexes will be prorated on a per unit basis 
at the time of final platting, final plan review or any subsequent replats, whichever indicates the greater 
proposed land use and final number of dwelling units to be constructed, and fees will be conveyed to 
the City prior to the issuance of any building permits.  

7. The cash-in-lieu fee for multi-family housing will be prorated on a per unit basis at the time of 
the issuance of building permits, which indicates the final number of dwelling units to be constructed, 
and will be conveyed to the City at the time of issuance of each building permit within the development.  

8. Cash-in-lieu fee collected is intended to be used to benefit the residents within the service area 
of the type of park for which the fees were collected (i.e., neighborhood park - one-half-mile radius; 
community park - two-mile radius). The City reserves the right to adjust the cash-in-lieu requirement 
between neighborhood and community park categories as deemed necessary to meet specific needs.  

(Ord. 370-06; Ord. 111-01; Ord. 045-00) 

16.42.040 - Disposal of land.  

Disposing of park lands obtained through these dedication requirements shall be pursuant to 
requirements of state law and/or City Charter.  

(Ord. 370-06; Ord. 111-01; Ord. 045-00) 

16.42.050 - Variations.  

Credit towards park land dedication requirements may be considered for the following and as 
determined by the Parks and Recreation Department, the Planning Division, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the City Council:  

A. Consideration may be given for meeting a portion of park land dedication requirements through the 
provision of specialized recreation facilities, provided that such facilities:  

1. Are, and will remain, available to the general public; 

2. Will meet a demonstrated public need; and 

3. Replace or supplement facilities that would generally be provided by the City. 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal

Commented [ST16]: This is an example of a section that 
has been streamlined to be more responsive and effective 
in implementation. 



 
 

  Page 12 

B. Consideration may be given for meeting a portion of park land dedication requirements through 
dedication or purchase and subsequent dedication of off-site land (land not contiguous to the 
development), provided that such land:  

1. Will meet a demonstrated public need; and 

2. Meets the selection criteria for a neighborhood park, community park or trail as provided in 
Section 16.42.060 below.  

C. Consideration may be given for meeting a portion of park land dedication requirements through the 
provision of private open land if such land is restricted for park, recreation or open space purposes by 
conservation easement or restricted deed, provided that such land:  

1. Will meet a demonstrated public need; and 

2. Meets the selection criteria for a neighborhood park community park, trail or open land as 
provided in Section 16.42.060 below.  

D. Consideration may be given for meeting a portion of park land dedication requirements through the 
provision of park and recreation facilities by developers, special districts and homeowners' 
associations provided that such amenities:  

1. Will meet a demonstrated public need; 

2. Are, and will remain, available to the general public; and 

3. Meet the selection criteria for a neighborhood park, community park or trail as provided in Section 
16.42.060 below.  

(Ord. 370-06; Ord. 111-01; Ord. 045-00) 

16.42.060 - Selection criteria.  

A. Community parks. Recommended guidelines for sizes of community parks are listed in the City of 
Evans Parks, Trails and Recreation Master Plan. Land may be considered for acceptance for 
community park land dedication requirements if all of the following criteria are met:  

1. Community parks shall have a two-mile service area radius and are a minimum of twenty-five (25) 
contiguous acres in size;  

2. Sufficient flat terrain is available to provide for the development of active recreation areas as 
deemed necessary to meet the needs of the respective service area;  

3. Land will not be considered for community park land dedication if it is an exclusive utility or other 
easement, public street right-of-way, pedestrian walkway required under other regulations or 
contains topographical or hazardous obstructions that would preclude development as a 
community park;  

4. Street frontage or permanent access to the park site, at two (2) or more points, with a minimum 
clear distance of three hundred (300) continuous linear feet each shall be provided for both 
vehicles and nonmotorized users;  

5. Only the upper one-fourth of detention areas, with maximum side slopes or berms of 6:1, adjacent 
to, or within, the park site may be applied toward the minimum acreage requirement;  

6. Fifty percent (50%) of oil wellhead and tank battery setback areas may be applied toward the 
minimum acreage requirement with the placement of the oil structures at the edge of any 
dedicated property affected. In the case of tank batteries, however, an additional three (3) acres, 
or a minimum of a total of twenty-three (23) contiguous acres, is necessary for park land 
dedication;  



 
 

  Page 13 

7. Areas to be dedicated shall offer natural and scenic quality and, ideally, can support both active 
and passive recreational activities for City residents; and  

8. Areas containing lakes, ponds or reservoirs may be considered, provided that such areas do not 
exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total dedication requirement and the area is contiguous to other 
land suitable for public park development.  

B. Neighborhood parks. Recommended guidelines for sizes of neighborhood parks are listed in the City 
of Evans Parks, Trails and Recreation Master Plan. Land may be considered for acceptance for 
neighborhood park land dedication requirements if all of the following criteria are met:  

1. Shall be a minimum of six (6) contiguous acres in size; 

2. Neighborhood parks shall have a one-half-mile service area radius, however, the service area 
will not extend across arterial roadways, as determined by the proposed development and City of 
Evans Transportation Plan, as amended;  

3. Sufficient flat terrain is available to provide for development of active recreation areas as deemed 
necessary to meet the needs of the respective service area;  

4. Land will not be considered for local park land dedication if it is an exclusive utility or other 
easement, public street right-of-way, pedestrian walkway required under other regulations or 
contains topographical or hazardous obstructions that would preclude development as a 
neighborhood park;  

5. Detention or retention areas will not be considered as suitable neighborhood park land and may 
not be applied to the minimum park acreage requirement, however; detention or retention facilities 
may be considered as adjacent and additional public lands to the dedicated park land providing 
that any side slopes or berms do not exceed a maximum 4:1 slope;  

6. Fifty percent (50%) of oil wellhead and tank battery setback areas may be applied toward the 
minimum acreage requirement with the placement of the oil structures at the edge of any 
dedicated property affected; in the case of tank batteries, however, an additional three (3) acres, 
or a minimum of a total of seven (7) contiguous acres, is necessary for park land dedication; and  

7. Street frontage or permanent access to the park site, at two (2) or more points, with a minimum 
clear distance of one hundred fifty (150) continuous linear feet each shall be provided for both 
vehicles and nonmotorized users.  

A neighborhood park site, when possible, should be considered for co-locating with an elementary and/or 
middle school site in order to benefit from shared facilities such as parking lots, access roads, play fields 
and other facilities, thereby reducing the overall acreage requirement by a factor equal to those shared 
facilities. Any such consideration must be approved by all parties involved, including the City of Evans, 
Weld County School District 6, Weld County and/or any others.  

C. Mini-parks. Recommended guidelines for sizes of mini-parks are listed in the City of Evans Parks, 
Trails and Recreation Master Plan. Land may be considered for a mini-park if all of the following criteria 
are met:  

1. Mini-parks shall be accessible to all residents living within a one-quarter-mile radius; 

2. Mini-parks shall only be constructed in large lot subdivisions (2.5 acres per unit or larger) and in 
developed areas of town that are currently underserved, where no sites meeting the six-acre 
minimum size for a neighborhood park are available;  

3. Land will not be considered for a mini-park if it is an exclusive utility or other easement, public 
street right-of-way, pedestrian walkway required under other regulations or contains 
topographical or hazardous obstructions that would prelude development as a mini-park; and  

4. Street frontage or permanent access to the park site, at two (2) or more points, with a minimum 
clear distance of seventy-five (75) linear feet each shall be provided for both vehicles and 
nonmotorized users.  



 
 

  Page 14 

D. Trails. Partial credit may be given for trails toward the park and dedication requirements as determined 
by the Parks and Recreation Department, the Parks and Recreation Commission and the City Council. 
Provision of trails is considered a normal element of an appropriately planned development. The 
following are considerations for design criteria for trails:  

1. Alignment provides linkages for the community to local parks, schools and other activity areas;  

2. Alignment is identified in the City's Trails Master Plan or provides linkages for the community to 
regional parks, trails or open lands as specified in the City of Evans Parks, Trails and Recreation 
Master Plan;  

3. Trails shall be designed to provide for easy, safe and secure usage and allow for sufficient 
easement or right-of-way to accommodate multiple uses; and  

4. Land should not be considered for trail dedication acceptance if it is an exclusive utility or other 
easement, public street right-of-way, pedestrian walkway required under other regulations or 
contains topographical or hazardous obstructions that would preclude development of a trail.  

(Ord. 370-06; Ord. 111-01; Ord. 045-00) 



  

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  642-16 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EVANS CITY CODE BY CONFIRMING AND RE-
ENACTING IMPACT FEES FOR TRANSPORTATION, PARKS, RECREATION AND 
TRAILS, AND FIRE/RESCUE SERVICES; ENACTING AND APPROVING A POLICE 
PROTECTION SERVICES IMPACT FEE; ESTABLISHING AND UPDATING THE 
SCHEDULES OF SUCH FEES; ESTABLISHING AND RE-ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES 
FOR IMPOSITION AND COLLECTION OF IMPACT FEES FOR DEVELOPMENT 
ACTIVITIES THAT GENERATE AN INCREASED NEED FOR ADDITIONAL CAPITAL 
FACILITIES; AND REPEALING, RELOCATING, AND CONSOLIDATING THE 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE VARIOUS IMPACTS FEES IN A NEW CHAPTER 3.20 
OF THE EVANS CITY CODE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado; and 
 

WHEREAS, the construction of proposed developments within the City places 
significant additional demands on the City’s capital facilities used in providing transportation, 
parks recreation and trails, fire/rescue services, and police protection services; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the demand for providing transportation, parks recreation and trails, 

fire/rescue services, and police protection services is immediate upon development of residential 
and non-residential property though funding from tax revenues accrues well after the demand for 
services has been created; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Evans City Council finds and determines that one of the primary roles 

of building, subdivision and development review is to ensure essential public services and 
facilities, and that in order to promote and protect the convenience, order, prosperity and welfare 
of present and future inhabitants of the City, a rational system for identifying growth-related 
costs incurred in providing new and expanded transportation, parks recreation and trails, 
fire/rescue services, and police protection services made necessary by development activity is 
necessary, and a fee structure therefore directly related to such costs and a method for collection 
of such fees, should be adopted; and  
 

WHEREAS, the adoption of a requirement that developers of residential and non-
residential developments pay transportation, parks recreation and trails, fire/rescue services, and 
police protection services impact fees as established and re-established herein will ensure that 
new development defrays the projected impacts on these capital facilities caused by the proposed 
development; and  

 



 2 

WHEREAS, the Local Government Land Use Control Enabling Act of 1974 (the “Land 
Use Act”), Sections 29-20-101 et seq., C.R.S.; Article 23 of Title 31, and other applicable laws 
grant broad authority to the City to plan for and regulate the development of land on the basis of 
the impacts thereof on the community and surrounding areas; and  

 
WHEREAS, provisions of the Land Use Act, including but not limited to Section 29-20-

104.5, C.R.S. authorize local governments to establish impact fees or similar development 
charges related to land development activities as a condition of the approval of development 
permits, if such fees or charges are intended to defray the projected impacts on capital facilities 
caused by proposed development; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Colorado constitutional and statutory authority 

and case law, as well as its own Charter, to regulate the development and use of land, and impose 
mitigation measures, including impact fees, upon proponents of land development activities if 
impacts related to the service demands created by the development are not adequately mitigated; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s authority to impose impact fees is conditioned upon criteria that 

establish the extent of the impact on capital facilities and the fees necessary to defray the 
projected impacts on capital facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority set forth above, and for the purposes set forth 

above, the City has previously enacted streets, park facilities, and fire/rescue impact fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the interest of the public health 

and safety, and necessary in order to provide capital facilities for police protection services 
associated with new development to impose a police protection services impact fee; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council previously determined the need to update the City’s 

existing impact fees and to determine the amount for the new police protection services impact 
fee, and to accomplish those purposes retained the services of TischlerBise to perform a Fiscal 
Impact Fee Study, and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 15, 2015 the City Council, following consideration of the 

matter, accepted the impact fee study from July 2015 performed by TischlerBise, and 
 
WHEREAS, TischlerBise subsequently made minor revisions resulting in a study dated 

November 16, 2015, and such study results, as revised, are reflected in this ordinance and the 
revised study is accepted by this ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the methodologies and analyses used by TischlerBise for determining the 

amount necessary to defray the projected impacts on capital facilities caused by the proposed 
development are reasonable and sound; and 

 



 3  

WHEREAS, all of the Capital Facilities planned for and included in the Impact Fee 
Study are services directly related to services the City is authorized to provide, have an estimated 
useful life of five years or longer, and are required by the Charter or general policy of the City 
pursuant to resolution or ordinance; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Impact Fees to be imposed on proposed development are legislatively 

imposed, generally applicable to a broad class of property and are no greater than necessary to 
defray the projected impacts on capital facilities caused by proposed new development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the amendments to the Evans 

City Code as contained herein, are necessary and designed for the purpose of promoting the 
health, safety, convenience, order, prosperity and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of 
the City of Evans and are consistent with the City’s goals, policies and plans, including the 
City’s master plan documents; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the legislative action of adopting the provisions 

set forth in this ordinance is necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the City’s 
residents and visitors. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
PART 1: ACCEPTANCE OF IMPACT FEE STUDY RESULTS.  The Impact Fee Study: City 
of Evans, Colorado prepared by TischlerBise and dated November 16, 2015 is hereby accepted.  
Copies of the report shall be made available to the public for inspection at the City Clerk’s office 
and copies may be provided upon appropriate request. 
 
PART 2:   AMENDMENT TO CITY CODE.  The City Code of the City of Evans, Colorado 
(herein sometimes referred to as the "City Code") is hereby amended as follows: 
 
1.1 Repeal of existing City Code provisions.  The following provisions of the existing City 

Code are hereby deleted, with such deletions to become effective simultaneously with the 
additions and other amendments as set forth below: 

 
a. Chapter 15.50, regarding Fire Protection Impact Fees; 

 
b. Chapter 15.52, regarding Park Impact Fees; and 

 
c. Chapter 12.20, regarding Street Impact Fees. 

 
1.2 Section 1.04.010 of the City Code is amended by adding the following definitions: 
 

(A) “Building Permit” means the development permit issued by the City before any 
building or construction activity can be initiated on a parcel of land. 

 



 4 

(B) “Capital Facilities” includes: 
 

(1) Buildings and facilities used for transportation, parks recreation and trails, 
fire/rescue services, and police protection services.  

 
(2) Apparatus and equipment, including communications equipment, with an 

average useful life of at least five years, for transportation, parks recreation 
and trails, fire/rescue services, and police protection services. 

 
(3) Excludes periodic or routine maintenance of facilities and equipment, 

personnel costs or operational expenses. 
 
(C) “Developer” means a person or entity that commences a Development creating 

the need for additional transportation, parks recreation and trails, fire/rescue 
services, or police protection services. 

 
(D)  “Development” means any construction or expansion of a building, structure, or 

use, any change in use of a building or structure, or any change in the use of land, 
which creates or may create impacts on Capital Facilities for transportation, parks 
recreation and trails, fire/rescue services, or police protection services. 

 
(E) “Fire District” means the Evans Fire Protection District. 

 
(F) “Fiscal Impact Fee Study” means a study prepared by an outside engineer or 

consultant that mathematically calculates the fiscal impact of future demand for 
services on existing facilities of the City of Evans or within is boundaries. 

 
(G) “Impact Fee” means a fee established as provided in this Chapter that is intended 

to defray the projected impacts on Capital Facilities for streets, park recreation or 
trail facilities, fire/rescue services, or police protection services caused by 
proposed development within the City of Evans. 

 
(H)  “TischlerBise Impact Fee Study” means the July 2015 Study accepted by the City 

Council on September 15, 2015. 
 
1.3 The City Code is amended by adding a new Chapter 3.20 to the City Code entitled 
 "Impact Fees", which shall provide as follows: 



 
Chapter 3.20 
 

IMPACT FEES 
 
Sections: 
3.20.010 - Title. 
3.20.020 - Purpose and Intent. 
3.20.030 - Imposition and Purpose of Specific Impact Fees. 
3.20.040 - Impact Fee Amounts. 
3.20.050 - Alternative Calculation Study. 
3.20.060 - Time for Payment of Impact Fees, Entity to Whom Payment Shall be Made. 
3.20.070 - Deposit and Use of Impact Fees. 
3.20.080 - Credit for Improvements. 
3.20.090 - Additional Guidelines for Park Credit Determinations. 
3.20.100 - Additional Guidelines for Transportation Credit Determinations. 
3.20.110 - Appeal of Credit Determinations. 
3.20.120 - Unpaid Impact Fees. 
3.20.130 - Prior Conditions and/or Agreements. 
3.20.140 - Adjustment and Review of Impact Fees. 
3.20.150 - Application. 
3.20.160 - Judicial Review.  
 
 
3.20.010 – Title. 
 
The provisions of this Chapter shall be known and cited as the Evans Impact Fee Code. 
 
3.20.020 - Purpose and Intent. 
 
(A) The purpose of this Chapter is to: 
 

(1) Provide a rational system for identifying and mitigating growth-related costs 
associated with growth and development and the expansion of transportation, 
parks recreation and trails, fire/rescue services, and police protection services 
through Capital Facilities made necessary by development. 

 
(2) Ensure that the impact fees established by this Chapter are established at a level 

no greater than necessary to defray such impacts directly related to proposed 
development. 

 
3.20.030 - Imposition and Purpose of Specific Impact Fees. 
 
(A) Any Developer who seeks a approval for a Development which impacts or may impact 
Capital Facilities for transportation, parks recreation and trails, fire/rescue services, or police 
protection services, who has not already dedicated land or Capital Facilities to fully satisfy 
anticipated impacts of the proposed development, shall pay an impact fee in the manner and 
amount set forth in this Chapter. 
 



 

 6 

(B) In order to provide or to assist in providing the financing required to develop, maintain, 
and provide Capital Facilities for transportation, parks recreation and trails, fire/rescue services, 
and police protection services, the impact fees in the amounts set forth below shall be paid to 
defray the projected impacts on Capital Facilities caused by the proposed development. 
 
3.20.040 – Impact Fee Amounts. 
 
(A) Transportation Impact Fees 
   
  Single Unit   $4,328 per housing unit 
  2+ Unit   $3,520  per housing unit 
  Manufactured Home  $4,328 per housing unit 
  Commercial   $5.62 per square foot of floor area 
  Office/Institutional  $2.43 per square foot of floor area 
  Industrial/Flex   $1.53 per square foot of floor area 
 
(B) Park Facility Impact Fees 
 
  Single Unit   $4,594 per housing unit 
  2+ Unit   $3,587 per housing unit 
  Manufactured Home  $3,569 per housing unit 
  Commercial   $0.00 per square foot of floor area 
  Office/Institutional  $0.00 per square foot of floor area 
  Industrial/Flex   $0.00 per square foot of floor area 
 
(C) Fire/Rescue Services Impact Fees 
 
  Single Unit   $930 per housing unit 
  2+ Unit   $726  per housing unit 
  Manufactured Home  $723 per housing unit 
  Commercial   $1.00 per square foot of floor area 
  Office/Institutional  $0.39 per square foot of floor area 
  Industrial/Flex   $0.25 per square foot of floor area 
 
(D) Police Protection Services Impact Fees 
 
  Single Unit   $274 per housing unit 
  2+ Unit   $214  per housing unit 
  Manufactured Home  $212 per housing unit 
  Commercial   $0.28 per square foot of floor area 
  Office/Institutional  $0.11 per square foot of floor area 
  Industrial/Flex   $0.07 per square foot of floor area 
 
3.20.050 - Alternative Calculation Study. 
 
In lieu of computation of the Impact Fee in accordance with the schedules adopted pursuant to 
Section 3.20.040 above, the Developer may prepare and submit, to the Evans City Manager, a 



  7 

site-specific Fiscal Impact Fee Study and calculation for the Development.  The Fiscal Impact 
Fee Study submitted shall show the basis upon which the site-specific Impact Fee Study 
calculation was made, and such calculation shall reflect the same level of service and standards 
contemplated by the TischlerBise Fiscal Impact Fee Study.  The site-specific Fiscal Impact Fee 
Study and calculation shall be prepared and presented by professionals qualified in their 
respective fields.  The Evans City Manager or their designee shall consider the documentation 
submitted by the Developer.  If the City Manager or their designee determines that an acceptable 
site-specific Fiscal Impact Fee Study and calculation has not been presented, the Developer shall 
pay the Impact Fee based upon the schedule set forth in Section 3.20.040 above.  Determinations 
made by the City Manager or his designee pursuant to this section may be appealed to the City 
Council by filing a written request with the City Clerk within ten (10) days of the determination 
by the City Manager or their designee.  Following the submittal of such request, the City Council 
shall hold a public hearing to determine prior to Development approval, the amount of the 
Impact Fee that shall be paid.  
 
3.20.060 - Time for Payment of Impact Fees, Entity To Whom Payment Shall Be Made. 
 
The owner of property shall pay the Impact Fees at the time a building permit is issued.  All 
Impact Fees shall be paid to the Evans City Treasurer. 
 
3.20.070 - Deposit and Use of Impact Fees. 
 
All Impact Fees collected pursuant to this Chapter shall be deposited by the City or the Fire 
District in an interest-bearing account that clearly identifies the category, account, or fund of 
capital expenditure for which such charge was imposed. Each such category, account, or fund 
shall be accounted for separately.  Any interest or other income earned on moneys deposited in 
said interest-bearing account shall be credited to the account.   All Impact Fees shall be used 
exclusively for Capital Facilities for which they were collected.  No Impact Fees shall be used 
for periodic or routine maintenance, personnel costs, or operational expenses.  All Impact Fees 
will be collected and deposited in accordance with Part 8 of Article 1 of Title 29 of the Colorado 
Revised Statutes. 
 
3.20.080 - Credit for Improvements. 
 
The City Manager shall calculate the amount of any credit that shall be granted to any Developer 
for the amounts due or to become due for Capital Facilities installed, purchased, and paid for by 
such Developer when such Capital Facilities offset the need or amount of the Impact Fee that 
would otherwise be required.  Any credit granted shall not exceed the total amount the Developer 
would have had to pay under the existing fee schedule. 
 
3.20.090 - Additional Guidelines For Park Credit Determinations. 
 
By way of illustration and not limitation, in making a determination of whether to grant credit for 
park facilities provided by a Developer, the City Manager may consider the following as non-
binding guidelines: 
 
(A) Whether the park Capital Facilities utilize acceptable design and construction methods 

approved by the Director of Parks and Recreation. 
 



 

 8 

(B) Whether the park Capital Facilities adhere to the applicable sections of Chapter 16.42 of 
the Evans Municipal Code. 

 
(C) Whether the park Capital Facilities conform to the standards and criteria as outlined in 

the City of Evans Parks, Trails and Recreation Master Plan, as amended. 
 
3.20.100 - Additional Guidelines for Transportation Credit Determinations. 
 
By way of illustration and not limitation, in making a determination of whether to grant credit for 
transportation facilities provided by a Developer, the City Manager may consider the following 
as non-binding guidelines: 
 
(A) Whether the Developer has dedicated land for rights-of-way and the  value of such 

dedication, which may be based on the most recent assessed  value of the County 
Assessor or the fair market value of the property as established by an appraiser or by 
other reliable means. 

 
(B) Whether the Developer has constructed or agreed to construct transportation Capital 

Facilities and the value of such Capital Facilities based on complete engineering 
drawings, specifications, and construction costs estimates, or by other reliable means. 

 
(C) Whether the Developer has contributed to or agreed to contribute to the cost of 

transportation Capital Facilities and the value of such contribution based on actual 
construction costs or an estimate prepared by a professional engineer or other reliable 
means. 

 
(D) Whether the Developer has entered into an agreement with the City to construct off-site 

transportation Capital Facilities to the City’s system and the value of such facilities. 
  
3.20.110 - Appeal of Credit Determinations. 
Determinations made by the City Manager or his designee pursuant to this section may be 
appealed to the City Council by filing a written request with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
of the determination by the City Manager or their designee.  Following the submittal of such 
request, the City Council shall hold a public hearing to determine prior to Development approval, 
the amount of credits to be granted.  
 
3.20.120 - Unpaid Impact Fees. 
 
The City reserves the right to withhold or revoke any permits, certificates, or other approvals for 
any land or building for which the payment of Impact Fees is delinquent.  
 
3.20.130 - Prior Conditions and/or Agreements. 
 
Any Developer who, prior to the effective date of this Chapter, agreed as a condition of 
development approval to pay Impact Fees shall be responsible for the payment of the fees under 
the terms of any such agreement, and the payment of such fees by the Developer will be offset 
against any Impact Fees due pursuant to the terms of this Chapter. 



  9 

 
 
3.20.140 - Adjustment and Review of Impact Fees. 
 
The amount of all Impact Fees shall be reviewed and adjusted as follows: 
 

(A) Annually, the Impact fees for transportation, parks, recreation, and trails will be updated 
and adjusted, by resolution, to reflect inflation utilizing the most recent factor in the 
most recent period for which figures are available from the Consumer Price Index for 
the Denver-Boulder-Greeley area.  Annually, the Impact fees for police protection 
services and fire/rescue services will be updated to reflect inflation, as reflected in the 
Engineering News Record Construction Index.   

 
(B) The City Council shall, annually, in conjunction with the presentation of Evans’s 

proposed budget, consider any further adjustments to the Impact Fees.  
 
(C) City Council is encouraged to authorize and cause to be performed future Fiscal 

Impact Fee Studies on a regular basis to review the City’s impact fees. 
 
3.20.150 - Application. 
 
The requirements of this Chapter shall apply only within the jurisdiction and boundaries of the 
City of Evans.  Only applicants who submit applications for development after adoption of the 
Impact Fee will be assessed such fee. 
 
3.20.160 - Judicial Review. 
 
The Developer may seek a declaratory judgment to determine whether any Impact Fee assessed 
complies with state law requirements for the imposition of impact fees.  The City shall allow the 
Developer, upon payment of the Impact Fee, to proceed with development of their property 
pursuant to the Development approval while the court reviews the validity of the Impact Fee. 
 
PART 3:  REPEAL.  Any and all existing City Code provisions, ordinances or parts of City Code 
provisions or ordinances of the City of Evans covering the same matters as embraced in this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed and all City Code provisions, ordinances or parts of City Code 
provisions or ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that such repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of 
any person for any act done or committed in violation of any City Code provision or ordinance 
hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance. 
 
PART 4:  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City of Evans 
hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause 
or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses and phrases thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional.  
 
PART 5: EFFECTIVE DATE. The provisions of this Ordinance shall become effective as of 
February 15, 2016. 



 

 10 

 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 5TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
 Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON A SECOND READING THIS 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, 
2016.  
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTED BY: 

January 19, 2016 

8.A

Emergency Ordinance No. 644-16 – An Ordinance Amending 
Section 16.04.070 that outlines the Basis for Establishing the 
Special Flood Hazard Area   

N. Zach Ratkai, Building and Development Manager

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

The original Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (No. 579-13) was adopted on January 7, 2014 
on the basis of the Colorado State Model Ordinance, the adoption thereof required by the State of 
Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB). Within Ordinance 579-13, section 16.04.070 
outlines the adoption of a specific version of the FEMA-generated Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) which is the map by which the Evans floodplain boundaries are delineated.  

The original ordinance adopted updated and draft FIRM maps released on May 31, 2013. Since 
that time FEMA has conducted their period comment, appeal and revision time period. That time 
period has since lapsed with no changes proposed, thus having FEMA adopt the map as final as of 
January 20, 2016. The CWCB mandates that the date of the FIRM maps be updated in the adoption 
of the City’s ordinance, hence the amended section presented on the attached ordinance.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

There will be no financial impact with the passage of this ordinance. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends passage of this Ordinance. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

* I move to recommend approval of Ordinance No. 644-16.
* I move to deny approval of Ordinance No. 644-16. 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO.   644-16 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AMENDING BY REPLACING CHAPTER 16.04 OF THE 
EVANS CITY CODE REGARDING FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has previously adopted ordinances regarding flood 
damage prevention, which are codified in Section 16.04 of the Evans City Code; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council has concluded that the City’s flood damage prevention 
regulations should be revised as set forth below, in order to protect the health, safety and welfare 
of the general public and the citizenry of the City of Evans; and,  

 WHEREAS, as part of the adoption of a flood damage prevention ordinance, specific 
floodplain delineation maps are adopted based on the date that FEMA release said maps to the 
public; and,  

 WHEREAS, as mandated by the Colorado Water Conservation Board, the City’s 
ordinance shall be updated to reflect the most current floodplain maps in use; and, 

 WHEREAS, the passage of this emergency ordinance is necessary in order to comply 
with federal regulations and so as not to jeopardize flood insurance coverage for Evans’ citizens 
and property owners.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Section 16.04.070 of the Evans City Code is amended to read as follows: 

 
16.040.070. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA            
The Special Flood Hazard Areas identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in a 
scientific and engineering report entitled, "The Flood Insurance Study for the City of Evans, 
Colorado," dated January 20, 2016, with accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps and/or 
Flood Boundary as adopted by ordinance.  
 
Floodway Maps (FIRM and/or FBFM) and any revisions thereto are hereby adopted by 
reference and declared to be a part of this ordinance.  These Special Flood Hazard Areas 
identified by the FIS and attendant mapping are the minimum area of applicability of this 
ordinance and may be supplemented by studies designated and approved by resolution of the 
Evans City Council. The Floodplain Administrator shall keep a copy of the Flood Insurance 
Study (FIS), DFIRMs, FIRMs and/or FBFMs on file and available for public inspection. 



2.  Any person who violates any provision of this Ordinance shall be punished as provided in 
Chapter 1.16 of the City Code. 

3. Severability. If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts thereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

4.  Repeal.  Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters embraced 
in this ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with 
the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed except that this repeal shall not affect or 
prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation 
of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effect date of this ordinance. 

5.  Publication and Effective Date.  This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate protection 
and preservation of the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City of Evans for 
the reasons described above, and therefore, shall become effective immediately as an emergency 
ordinance upon adoption by the City Council. 

 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2016. 

 

ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 

 

__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 

Raegan Robb, City Clerk John Morris, Mayor 

 



COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: January 19, 2016 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.B

SUBJECT:  Emergency Ordinance No. 645-16 – Amending Chapter 1.14 of the 
Evans Municipal Code concerning certain deadlines related to the 
2016 Evans Regular Municipal Council Election 

PRESENTED BY: Scott Krob, City Attorney and Raegan Robb, City Clerk 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Emergency Ordinance 645-16 would amend Chapter 1.14 of the Evans Municipal Code in 
order to satisfy the requirements under the federal “Uniformed and Overseas Citizens 
Absentee Voting Act" (UOCAVA).  At the January 5, 2016 City Council meeting, staff 
received direction from Council to make any necessary changes to the election deadlines 
established in City Code in order to meet the 45 day mailing requirement to send mail 
ballots to UOCAVA voters.   

BACKGROUND: 

UOCAVA.  The requirements of the federal “Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee 
Voting Act" (UOCAVA) were implemented in Colorado during the 2015 legislative 
session through adoption of HB15-1130, which implemented requirements to help 
ensure that United States military personnel and American civilians living abroad can vote 
in federal, state elections, and local elections. 

This Act requires that ballots be mailed to registered voters that qualify under UOCAVA 
no later than 45 days before the date of the election (Evans currently has 33 UOCAVA 
covered voters). 

The City’s Home Rule authority provides the ability to amend the municipal code in order 
to satisfy different election deadlines and challenges that may arise while conducting a 
mail ballot election.  At the January 5, 2016 City Council meeting, staff received direction 
from Council to make any necessary changes to the election deadlines established in City 
Code in order to meet the 45 day mailing requirement to send mail ballots to UOCAVA 
voters.    

Evans Election Guidelines.  Section 2.3 of the Evans Home Rule Charter provides 
that regular and special municipal elections shall be governed by the Colorado Municipal 



Election Law, except as otherwise provided in the Evans Home Rule Charter or as Council 
may prescribe by Ordinance.  

Therefore, the Council may, by Ordinance establish election procedures, the method for 
registration of electors, the number, qualifications and compensation for election of 
Judges, and the boundaries of election Wards, by Ordinance.  The changes to Chapter 
1.14 are shown below: 

CHAPTER 1.14 – Elections 

1.14.010 - Nomination petitions. 
Notwithstanding any provision in the Colorado Municipal Election Code or Uniform Election Code, 
the time periods for circulation, submission and cure of nomination petitions for any City mail 
ballot election shall be as follows:  

Action 

# Of days 
prior           

  to the 
election 

Deadline 
change New election deadline 

First day to pick up petitions 60 days 67 days Friday, January 29, 2016 

Last day to file petition with City Clerk 46 days 53 days Friday, February 12, 2016 

Last day to cure petition with City Clerk 40 days 48 days Wednesday, February 17, 2016 

Last day to withdraw from nomination 40 days 48 days Wednesday, February 17, 2016 

Affidavit of intent 40 days 48 days Wednesday, February 17, 2016 

Election may be cancelled 40 days 35 days Tuesday, March 1, 2016 

Election Day Tuesday, April 5, 2016 

1.14.020 - Affidavit of intent. 

No write-in vote for any municipal office shall be counted unless an affidavit of intent has been 
filed with the City Clerk by the person whose name is written in by the close of business on the 
fortieth forty-eighth day before the date of the election, indicating that such person desires the office 
and is qualified to assume the duties of that office, if elected. The City Clerk shall maintain an 
appropriate form of affidavit in the Clerk's office.  



1.14.030 - Election may be cancelled - when. 
If the only matter before the voters is the election of persons to office and if, at the close of 
business on the fortieth thirty-fifth day before the election, there are not more candidates than 
offices to be filled at such election, including candidates filing affidavits of intent, as set forth in 
Section 1.14.020 of this Chapter, the City Council, by resolution, shall cancel the election and 
declare the candidates elected. Notice of such cancellation shall be published and posted.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

The County currently has thirty-three (33) registered UOCAVA voters with little additional cost to the 
overall set-up and project cost.  The City of Evans has already received a quote of approximately $12,500 from 
our vendor, Election Systems & Software, to mail out 10,000 ballots for the April election.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt Emergency Ordinance No. 645-16 to amend Chapter 
1.14 to ensure compliance with UOCAVA and UMOVA. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

* I move to approve Ordinance No. 645-16 on first reading.
* I move to deny approval of Ordinance No. 645-16.



CHAPTER 1.14 – Elections 

1.14.010 - Nomination petitions. 

Notwithstanding any provision in the Colorado Municipal Election Code or Uniform Election Code, the 
time periods for circulation, submission and cure of nomination petitions for any City mail ballot election 
shall be as follows:  

Action from candidates 
# of days prior       
to the election 

Deadline Change 

First day to pick up petitions 60 days 67 days 

Last day to file petition with City Clerk 46 days 53 days 

Last day to cure petition with City Clerk 40 days 48 days 

Last day to withdraw from nomination 40 days 48 days 

1.14.020 - Affidavit of intent. 

No write-in vote for any municipal office shall be counted unless an affidavit of intent has been filed 
with the City Clerk by the person whose name is written in by the close of business on the fortieth forty-
eighth day before the date of the election, indicating that such person desires the office and is qualified to 
assume the duties of that office, if elected. The City Clerk shall maintain an appropriate form of affidavit in 
the Clerk's office.  

1.14.030 - Election may be cancelled - when. 

If the only matter before the voters is the election of persons to office and if, at the close of business 
on the fortieth forty-eighth day before the election, there are not more candidates than offices to be filled at 
such election, including candidates filing affidavits of intent, as set forth in Section 1.14.020 of this Chapter, 
the City Council, by resolution, shall cancel the election and declare the candidates elected. Notice of such 
cancellation shall be published and posted.  



CITY OF EVANS 

ORDINANCE NO. 645-16 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1.14 OF THE EVANS 
MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING CERTAIN DEADLINES RELATED TO THE 

2016 EVANS REGULAR MUNICIPAL COUNCIL ELECTION  

WHEREAS, the City of Evans conducts its municipal elections through mail ballot 
procedures implemented by the City Clerk's Office; and 

WHEREAS, based on Section 2.1 of the Evans Home Rule Charter, which provides that 
“Regular municipal elections shall be held on the first Tuesday following the first Monday 
in April in the even numbered years commencing with 1974 and bi-annually thereafter, the 
2015 Evans regular municipal election is to be held on Tuesday, April 5, 2016.” ; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2.3 of the Evans Home Rule Charter provides that “Regular and 
Special Municipal elections shall be governed by the Colorado Municipal Election Law as 
now existing or hereafter amended or modified, except as otherwise provided in this Charter 
or as Council may prescribe by ordinance. The Council may by ordinance establish election 
procedures, the method for registration of electors, the number, qualifications and 
compensation for election of Judges and Clerks, and the boundaries of election Wards.”; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2.4 of the Evans Home Rule Charter provides that “the City Clerk 
shall provide notice of election in accordance with federal, state, or municipal law, 
whichever is applicable.”; and  

WHEREAS, when deemed necessary over the years, the Evans City Council has 
adopted Ordinances applicable to the conduct of municipal elections, which ordinances 
have been codified as Chapter 1.14 of the Evans Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, during the 2015 legislative session, the Colorado General Assembly 
enacted HB15-1130, which implemented requirements to help ensure that United States 
military personnel and American civilians living abroad can vote in federal and state 
elections according to the federal "Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act" 
(UOCAVA) and the state "Uniform Military and Overseas Voters Act" (UMOVA); and  

WHEREAS, because county elections are coordinated with state elections, UOCAVA and 
UMOVA also indirectly help ensure that such military personnel and civilians have similar 
ability to vote in municipal elections as they do in federal, state, and county elections; and   

WHEREAS, UOCAVA contains certain deadlines for mailing ballots to such military 
personnel and civilians that are inconsistent with and earlier than the existing deadlines in 
Chapter 1.14 of the Evans Municipal Code; and 



WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend Chapter 1.14 to ensure compliance with 
UOCAVA and UMOVA, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to adopt this Ordinance as an emergency measure for the 
immediate protection and preservation of the public safety, and welfare of the citizens of the 
City of Evans.  In particular it protects the fundamental rights of military personnel and 
civilians who are entitled to the benefits of UOCAVA and UMOVA by ensuring their ability 
to participate and vote in the 2016 Evans regular municipal election. 
  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF EVANS, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1.  Chapter 1.14, of the Evans Municipal Code is hereby amended to reflect 
the deadline changes indicated in the chart and redline notations set forth below: 

 
 

CHAPTER 1.14 – Elections 
 
1.14.010 - Nomination petitions.  
Notwithstanding any provision in the Colorado Municipal Election Code or Uniform Election 
Code, the time periods for circulation, submission and cure of nomination petitions for any 
City mail ballot election shall be as follows:  

 

Action from candidates # of days prior                      
to the election Deadline Change 

First day to pick up petitions 60 days  67 days 
Last day to file petition with City Clerk 46 days  53 days 
Last day to cure petition with City Clerk 40 days  48 days 
Last day to withdraw from nomination 40 days  48 days 

 1.14.020 - Affidavit of intent.                                                                                                    
No write-in vote for any municipal office shall be counted unless an affidavit of intent has 
been filed with the City Clerk by the person whose name is written in by the close of business 
on the fortieth forty-eighth day before the date of the election, indicating that such person 
desires the office and is qualified to assume the duties of that office, if elected. The City Clerk 
shall maintain an appropriate form of affidavit in the Clerk's office.  

1.14.030 - Election may be cancelled - when.  
If the only matter before the voters is the election of persons to office and if, at the close of 
business on the fortieth thirty-fifth day before the election, there are not more candidates than 
offices to be filled at such election, including candidates filing affidavits of intent, as set forth 
in Section 1.14.020 of this Chapter, the City Council, by resolution, shall cancel the election 
and declare the candidates elected. Notice of such cancellation shall be published and posted.  

 
 



2. Severability. If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts thereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
3.  Repeal.  Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters embraced 
in this ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent 
with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed except that this repeal shall not affect 
or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 
violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
4.  Publication and Effective Date.  This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate 
protection and preservation of the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City 
of Evans for the reasons described above, and therefore, shall become effective immediately as 
an emergency ordinance upon adoption by the City Council. 
 
 
INTRODUCED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
  



COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: January 19, 2016 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.C

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 08-2016 – Amending Resolution No. 06-2016 and 
Authorizing the Conduct of a Mail Ballot Election for the City’s 
Regular Municipal Election Scheduled for April 5, 2016 

PRESENTED BY: Scott Krob, City Attorney and Raegan Robb, City Clerk 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

REGULAR MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS.  According to the Evans Home Rule Charter, “regular 
municipal elections shall be held on the first Tuesday following the first Monday in April in the even 
numbered years commencing with 1974 and bi-annually thereafter.” 

This resolution amends Resolution 06-2016 and authorizing the conduct of a Mail Ballot Election for 
the City’s Regular Municipal Election for April 5, 2016.     
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

The 2016 Election budget has been set at $35,000 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 Staff recommends adoption of the resolution. 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

"I move to adopt Resolution No. 08-2016." 
"I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 08-2016." 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION 08-2016 

A RESOLUTION AMENDEDING RESOLUTION 06-2016 AND AUTHORIZING THE 
CONDUCT OF A MAIL BALLOT ELECTION FOR THE CITY’S REGULAR MUNICIPAL 

ELECTION SCHEDULED FOR APRIL 5, 2016 

WHEREAS,  the City Council adopted Resolution 06-2016 authorizing a mail ballot election for the 
City’s 2016 regular municipal election, and 

WHEREAS, in reviewing the new procedures involved in municipal elections as a result of the 
enactment of the Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act" (UOCAVA) and the state 
"Uniform Military and Overseas Voters Act" (UMOVA) it was determined that the date of the 2016 
Evans regular municipal election is April 5, 2016, rather than April 12, 2016. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 

 Resolution 06-2016 is hereby amended by changing the date indicated for the Evans regular 
municipal election from April 12, 2016 to April 5, 2016.  All other provisions of Resolution 06-2016 
shall remain unchanged. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on 
this 19th day of January, 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

By: 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



 _______________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: January 19, 2016 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.D

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 09-2016 – Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement 
with the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Regarding the 
Widening of 35th Avenue between 37th Street and Prairie View Drive 

PRESENTED BY: Dawn Anderson, City Engineer 
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Resolution No. 09-2016 approves an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of 
Evans and CDOT. The intent of the IGA is for the purpose of obtaining reimbursement from the 
State of Colorado for work resulting from the widening of 35th Avenue to a four lane major 
arterial section as outlined in the city’s adopted transportation plan.   

The city received a notice of award in the amount of $1,115,000. With the city’s required local 
match in the amount of $231,781 the total funded award for the project is $1,346,781.   

The Scope of the Work coved by this IGA is defined within the IGA Exhibit “A” and describes 
the work associated with the 35th Avenue Widening Project. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
A total of $2,500.000.00 is budgeted for construction of the project from the following funds: 
2015 CIP Streets fund:  $1,440,000 budgeted 
2015 Street Impact fund:  $707,000 budgeted 
2016 CIP Streets fund:  $353,000 budgeted 

The 2016 first quarter revision will include a request to carry forward the 2015 project budget to 
current year for construction. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the IGA with the Colorado Department of Transportation through 
the adoption of Resolution No. 09-2016. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 09-2016 approving the IGA with the Colorado Department of 
Transportation regarding the Widening of 35th Avenue between 37th Street and Prairie View 
Drive. 

“I move NOT to adopt Resolution No. 09-2016 approving an IGA with the Colorado Department 
of Transportation regarding the Widening of 35th Avenue between 37th Street and Prairie View 
Drive. 
________________________________________________________________________  



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 09-2016 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 

STATE OF COLORADO, AND THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
REGARDING  WIDENING 35TH AVENUE BETWEEN 

37TH STREET AND PRAIRIE VIEW DRIVE 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado statute 
and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the City of 
Evans, Colorado; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Evans City Council desires to widen 35th Avenue to a four-lane arterial 

street with sidewalks between 37th Street and Prairie View Drive (“the Work”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Evans City Council desires to obtain financial assistance from the Colorado 

Department of Transportation (“CDOT”); and 
 
WHEREAS, CDOT has agreed to provide financial assistance in the funding of the Work, 

pursuant to the provisions in the State of Colorado, Department of Transportation Agreement with 
the City of Evans” attached hereto (“the CDOT IGA”) 

 
WHEREAS, intergovernmental cooperation and agreements to pursue common purposes are 

encouraged among governmental entities by the Colorado constitution and by statute; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the CDOT IGA and finds that it is in the best 

interest of the public and promotes the health, safety, and welfare of the public to authorize the 
Mayor to enter into the CDOT IGA on behalf of the City of Evans. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF EVANS, COLORADO, that the attached State of Colorado, Department of Transportation 
Agreement with the City of Evans is hereby approved and the Mayor is authorized and directed to 
execute said Agreement on behalf of the City.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Evans on this 19th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 



(FMLAWRK) Rev. 7/8/09 

Project: Construction of roadway and Pedestrian 

Improvement (19741) 

Routing #: 16-HA4-XC-00009  

Region: 04 (rh) SAP ID #:  / 331001415  
 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 

Department of Transportation 

Agreement 

with 

 CITY OF EVANS 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. PARTIES ................................................................................................................................................ 2 
2. EFFECTIVE DATE AND NOTICE OF NONLIABILITY ................................................................... 2 
3. RECITALS ............................................................................................................................................. 2 
4. DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................................................................ 2 
5. TERM AND EARLY TERMINATION ................................................................................................. 3 
6. SCOPE OF WORK ................................................................................................................................. 3 
7. OPTION LETTER MODIFICATION .................................................................................................... 7 
8. PAYMENTS ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
9. ACCOUNTING ...................................................................................................................................... 9 
10. REPORTING - NOTIFICATION ........................................................................................................... 9 
11. LOCAL AGENCY RECORDS ............................................................................................................ 10 
12. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION-STATE RECORDS.................................................................... 11 
13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ................................................................................................................. 11 
14. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ..................................................................................... 11 
15. INSURANCE ........................................................................................................................................ 12 
16. DEFAULT-BREACH ........................................................................................................................... 13 
17. REMEDIES .......................................................................................................................................... 13 
18. NOTICES and REPRESENTATIVES ................................................................................................. 15 
19. RIGHTS IN DATA, DOCUMENTS, AND COMPUTER SOFTWARE ............................................. 15 
20. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY........................................................................................................ 15 
21. STATEWIDE CONTRACT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ................................................................... 16 
22. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................................................. 16 
23. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) .................................................................... 16 
24. DISPUTES ............................................................................................................................................ 16 
25. GENERAL PROVISIONS ................................................................................................................... 17 
26. COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................... 19 
27. SIGNATURE PAGE ............................................................................................................................ 21 

 

 

28.    EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

29.    EXHIBIT B – LOCAL AGENCY RESOLUTION 

30.    EXHIBIT C – FUNDING PROVISIONS 

31.    EXHIBIT D – OPTION LETTER 

32.    EXHIBIT E – LOCAL AGENCY CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION CHECKLIST   

33.    EXHIBIT F – CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS   

34.    EXHIBIT G – DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE  

35.    EXHIBIT H – LOCAL AGENCY PROCEDURES FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

36.    EXHIBIT I – FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

37.    EXHIBIT J – FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS  

38.    EXHIBIT K – SUPPLEMENTAL FEDERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 

  



 

Document Builder Generated Page 2 of 21 
 

 

1. PARTIES 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between CITY OF EVANS (hereinafter called the “Local Agency”), 

and the STATE OF COLORADO acting by and through the Department of Transportation (hereinafter called the 

“State” or “CDOT”). 

2. EFFECTIVE DATE AND NOTICE OF NONLIABILITY 

This Agreement shall not be effective or enforceable until it is approved and signed by the Colorado State 

Controller or their designee (hereinafter called the “Effective Date”). The State shall not be liable to pay or 

reimburse the Local Agency for any performance hereunder, including, but not limited to costs or expenses 

incurred, or be bound by any provision hereof prior to the Effective Date. 

3. RECITALS 

A. Authority, Appropriation, and Approval 

Authority exists in the law and funds have been budgeted, appropriated and otherwise made available and a 

sufficient unencumbered balance thereof remains available for payment and the required approval, clearance 

and coordination have been accomplished from and with appropriate agencies. 

i. Federal Authority 

Pursuant to Title I, Subtitle A, Section 1108 of the “Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century” of 

1998 (TEA-21) and/or the “Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy 

for Users” (SAFETEA-LU) of 2005 and to applicable provisions of Title 23 of the United States Code 

and implementing regulations at Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as may be amended, 

(collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Federal Provisions”), certain federal funds have been and are 

expected to continue to be allocated for transportation projects requested by the Local Agency and 

eligible under the Surface Transportation Improvement Program that has been proposed by the State and 

approved by the Federal Highway Administration (“FHWA”). 

ii. State Authority 

Pursuant to CRS §43-1-223 and to applicable portions of the Federal Provisions, the State is responsible 

for the general administration and supervision of performance of projects in the Program, including the 

administration of federal funds for a Program project performed by a Local Agency under a contract 

with the State. This Agreement is executed under the authority of CRS §§29-1-203, 43-1-110; 43-1-116, 

43-2-101(4)(c) and 43-2-104.5. 

B. Consideration 

The Parties acknowledge that the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other good and 

valuable consideration are sufficient and adequate to support this Agreement. 

C. Purpose 

The purpose of this Agreement is to disburse Federal funds to the Local Agency pursuant to CDOT’s 

Stewardship Agreement with the FHWA.  

D. References 

All references in this Agreement to sections (whether spelled out or using the § symbol), subsections, exhibits 

or other attachments, are references to sections, subsections, exhibits or other attachments contained herein 

or incorporated as a part hereof, unless otherwise noted. 

4. DEFINITIONS 

The following terms as used herein shall be construed and interpreted as follows: 

A. Agreement or Contract 
“Agreement” or “Contract” means this Agreement, its terms and conditions, attached exhibits, documents 

incorporated by reference under the terms of this Agreement, and any future modifying agreements, exhibits, 

attachments or references that are incorporated pursuant to Colorado State Fiscal Rules and Policies. 

B. Agreement Funds 
“Agreement Funds” means funds payable by the State to Local Agency pursuant to this Agreement. 

C. Budget 
“Budget” means the budget for the Work described in Exhibit C. 

D. Consultant and Contractor 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 3 of 21 
 

“Consultant” means a professional engineer or designer hired by Local Agency to design the Work and 

“Contractor” means the general construction contractor hired by Local Agency to construct the Work.   

E Evaluation 
“Evaluation” means the process of examining the Local Agency’s Work and rating it based on criteria 

established in §6 and Exhibits A and E. 

F. Exhibits and Other Attachments 
The following exhibit(s) are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein: Exhibit A (Scope of 

Work), Exhibit B (Resolution), Exhibit C (Funding Provisions), Exhibit D (Option Letter), Exhibit E 

(Checklist), Exhibit F (Certification for Federal-Aid Funds), Exhibit G (Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise), Exhibit H (Local Agency Procedures), Exhibit I (Federal-Aid Contract Provisions), Exhibit J 

(Federal Requirements) and Exhibit K (Supplemental Federal Provisions). 

G. Goods 

“Goods” means tangible material acquired, produced, or delivered by the Local Agency either separately or 

in conjunction with the Services the Local Agency renders hereunder. 

H. Oversight 

“Oversight” means the term as it is defined in the Stewardship Agreement between CDOT and the Federal 

Highway Administration (“FHWA”) and as it is defined in the Local Agency Manual. 

I. Party or Parties 
“Party” means the State or the Local Agency and “Parties” means both the State and the Local Agency 

J. Work Budget 
Work Budget means the budget described in Exhibit C. 

K. Services 
“Services” means the required services to be performed by the Local Agency pursuant to this Contract. 

L. Work 
“Work” means the tasks and activities the Local Agency is required to perform to fulfill its obligations under 

this Contract and Exhibits A and E, including the performance of the Services and delivery of the Goods. 

M. Work Product 
“Work Product” means the tangible or intangible results of the Local Agency’s Work, including, but not 

limited to, software, research, reports, studies, data, photographs, negatives or other finished or unfinished 

documents, drawings, models, surveys, maps, materials, or work product of any type, including drafts. 

5. TERM AND EARLY TERMINATION 

The Parties’ respective performances under this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date. This 

Agreement shall terminate after five (5) years of state controllers signature in section 27, unless sooner terminated 

or completed as demonstrated by final payment and final audit. 

6. SCOPE OF WORK 

A. Completion 

The Local Agency shall complete the Work and other obligations as described herein in Exhibit A. Work 

performed prior to the Effective Date or after final acceptance shall not be considered part of the Work. 

B. Goods and Services 

The Local Agency shall procure Goods and Services necessary to complete the Work. Such procurement 

shall be accomplished using the Contract Funds and shall not increase the maximum amount payable 

hereunder by the State. 

C. Employees 

All persons employed hereunder by the Local Agency, or any Consultants or Contractors shall be considered 

the Local Agency’s, Consultants’, or Contractors’ employee(s) for all purposes and shall not be employees 

of the State for any purpose. 

D. State and Local Agency Commitments 

i. Design 

If the Work includes preliminary design or final design or design work sheets, or special provisions and 

estimates (collectively referred to as the “Plans”), the Local Agency shall comply with and be responsible 

for satisfying the following requirements: 

a) Perform or provide the Plans to the extent required by the nature of the Work. 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 4 of 21 
 

b) Prepare final design in accordance with the requirements of the latest edition of the American 

Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) manual or other standard, such 

as the Uniform Building Code, as approved by the State. 

c) Prepare provisions and estimates in accordance with the most current version of the State’s Roadway 

and Bridge Design Manuals and Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction or Local 

Agency specifications if approved by the State. 

d) Include details of any required detours in the Plans in order to prevent any interference of the 

construction Work and to protect the traveling public. 

e) Stamp the Plans produced by a Colorado Registered Professional Engineer. 

f) Provide final assembly of Plans and all other necessary documents. 

g) Be responsible for the Plans’ accuracy and completeness. 

h) Make no further changes in the Plans following the award of the construction contract to contractor 

unless agreed to in writing by the Parties. The Plans shall be considered final when approved in 

writing by CDOT and when final they shall be incorporated herein. 

ii. Local Agency Work 

a) Local Agency shall comply with the requirements of the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), 

and applicable federal regulations and standards as contained in the document “ADA Accessibility 

Requirements in CDOT Transportation Projects”. 

b) Local Agency shall afford the State ample opportunity to review the Plans and make any changes 

in the Plans that are directed by the State to comply with FHWA requirements. 

c) Local Agency may enter into a contract with a Consultant to perform all or any portion of the Plans 

and/or of construction administration. Provided, however, if federal-aid funds are involved in the 

cost of such Work to be done by such Consultant, such Consultant contract (and the 

performance/provision of the Plans under the contract) must comply with all applicable 

requirements of 23 C.F.R. Part 172 and with any procedures implementing those requirements as 

provided by the State, including those in Exhibit H. If the Local Agency enters into a contract with 

a Consultant for the Work: 

(1) Local Agency shall submit a certification that procurement of any Consultant contract complies 

with the requirements of 23 C.F.R. 172.5(1) prior to entering into such Consultant contract, 

subject to the State’s approval.  If not approved by the State, the Local Agency shall not enter 

into such Consultant contract. 

(2) Local Agency shall ensure that all changes in the Consultant contract have prior approval by 

the State and FHWA and that they are in writing. Immediately after the Consultant contract has 

been awarded, one copy of the executed Consultant contract and any amendments shall be 

submitted to the State.  

(3) Local Agency shall require that all billings under the Consultant contract comply with the 

State’s standardized billing format. Examples of the billing formats are available from the 

CDOT Agreements Office.  

(4)  Local Agency (and any Consultant) shall comply with 23 C.F.R. 172.5(b) and (d) and use the 

CDOT procedures described in Exhibit H to administer the Consultant contract. 

(5)  Local Agency may expedite any CDOT approval of its procurement process and/or Consultant 

contract by submitting a letter to CDOT from the Local Agency’s attorney/authorized 

representative certifying compliance with Exhibit H and 23 C.F.R. 172.5(b)and (d). 

(6)  Local Agency shall ensure that the Consultant contract complies with the requirements of 49 

CFR 18.36(i) and contains the following language verbatim: 

(a) The design work under this Agreement shall be compatible with the requirements of the 

contract between the Local Agency and the State (which is incorporated herein by this 

reference) for the design/construction of the project. The State is an intended third-party 

beneficiary of this agreement for that purpose. 

(b) Upon advertisement of the project work for construction, the consultant shall make 

available services as requested by the State to assist the State in the evaluation of 

construction and the resolution of construction problems that may arise during the 

construction of the project.  



 

Document Builder Generated Page 5 of 21 
 

(c) The consultant shall review the Construction Contractor’s shop drawings for conformance 

with the contract documents and compliance with the provisions of the State’s publication, 

Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, in connection with this work. 

(d) The State, in its sole discretion, may review construction plans, special provisions and 

estimates and may require the Local Agency to make such changes therein as the State 

determines necessary to comply with State and FHWA requirements. 

iii. Construction 

If the Work includes construction, the Local Agency shall perform the construction in accordance with 

the approved design plans and/or administer the construction in accordance with Exhibit E. Such 

administration shall include Work inspection and testing; approving sources of materials; performing 

required plant and shop inspections; documentation of contract payments, testing and inspection 

activities; preparing and approving pay estimates; preparing, approving and securing the funding for 

contract modification orders and minor contract revisions; processing Construction Contractor claims; 

construction supervision; and meeting the Quality Control requirements of the FHWA/CDOT 

Stewardship Agreement, as described in the Local Agency Contract Administration Checklist. 

a) If the Local Agency is performing the Work, the State may, after providing written notice of the 

reason for the suspension to the Local Agency, suspend the Work, wholly or in part, due to the 

failure of the Local Agency or its Contractor to correct conditions which are unsafe for workers or 

for such periods as the State may deem necessary due to unsuitable weather, or for conditions 

considered unsuitable for the prosecution of the Work, or for any other condition or reason deemed 

by the State to be in the public interest. 

b) The Local Agency shall be responsible for the following: 

(1) Appointing a qualified professional engineer, licensed in the State of Colorado, as the Local 

Agency Project Engineer (LAPE), to perform engineering administration. The LAPE shall 

administer the Work in accordance with this Agreement, the requirements of the construction 

contract and applicable State procedures. 

(2) For the construction of the Work, advertising the call for bids upon approval by the State and 

awarding the construction contract(s) to the low responsible bidder(s). 

(a) All advertising and bid awards, pursuant to this agreement, by the Local Agency shall 

comply with applicable requirements of 23 U.S.C. §112 and 23 C.F.R. Parts 633 and 635 

and C.R.S. § 24-92-101 et seq. Those requirements include, without limitation, that the 

Local Agency and its Contractor shall incorporate Form 1273 (Exhibit I) in its entirety 

verbatim into any subcontract(s) for those services as terms and conditions therefore, as 

required by 23 C.F.R. 633.102(e). 

(b) The Local Agency may accept or reject the proposal of the apparent low bidder for Work 

on which competitive bids have been received. The Local Agency must  accept or reject 

such bid within three (3) working days after they are publicly opened. 

(c) As part of accepting bid awards, the Local Agency shall provide additional funds, subject 

to their availability and appropriation, necessary to complete the Work if no additional 

federal-aid funds are available. 

(3)  The requirements of this §6(D)(iii)(c)(2) also apply to any advertising and awards made by the 

State. 

(4)  If all or part of the Work is to be accomplished by the Local Agency’s personnel (i.e. by force 

account) rather than by a competitive bidding process, the Local Agency shall perform such 

work in accordance with pertinent State specifications and requirements of 23 C.F.R. 635, 

Subpart B, Force Account Construction. 

(a) Such Work will normally be based upon estimated quantities and firm unit prices agreed 

to between the Local Agency, the State and FHWA in advance of the Work, as provided 

for in 23 C.F.R. 635.204(c). Such agreed unit prices shall constitute a commitment as to 

the value of the Work to be performed. 

(b) An alternative to the preceding subsection is that the Local Agency may agree to participate 

in the Work based on actual costs of labor, equipment rental, materials supplies and 

supervision necessary to complete the Work. Where actual costs are used, eligibility of cost 

items shall be evaluated for compliance with 48 C.F.R. Part 31. 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 6 of 21 
 

(c) If the State provides matching funds under this Agreement, rental rates for publicly owned 

equipment shall be determined in accordance with the State’s Standard Specifications for 

Road and Bridge Construction §109.04. 

(d) All Work being paid under force account shall have prior approval of the State and/or 

FHWA and shall not be initiated until the State has issued a written notice to proceed. 

E. State’s Commitments 

a) The State will perform a final project inspection of the Work as a quality control/assurance activity. 

When all Work has been satisfactorily completed, the State will sign the FHWA Form 1212. 

b) Notwithstanding any consents or approvals given by the State for the Plans, the State shall not be liable 

or responsible in any manner for the structural design, details or construction of any major structures 

designed by, or that are the responsibility of, the Local Agency as identified in the Local Agency Contract 

Administration Checklist, Exhibit E. 

F. ROW and Acquisition/Relocation 

a) If the Local Agency purchases a right of way for a State highway, including areas of influence, the Local 

Agency shall immediately convey title to such right of way to CDOT after the Local Agency obtains 

title.  

b) Any acquisition/relocation activities shall comply with all applicable federal and state statutes and 

regulations, including but not limited to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended and the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs as amended (49 C.F.R. Part 24), 

CDOT’s Right of Way Manual, and CDOT’s Policy and Procedural Directives. 

c) The Parties’ respective compliance responsibilities depend on the level of federal participation; provided 

however, that the State always retains Oversight responsibilities. 

d) The Parties’ respective responsibilities under each level in CDOT’s Right of Way Manual (located at 

http://www.dot.state.co.us/ROW_Manual/) and reimbursement for the levels will be under the following 

categories: 

(1) Right of way acquisition (3111) for federal participation and non-participation; 

(2) Relocation activities, if applicable (3109); 

(3) Right of way incidentals, if applicable (expenses incidental to acquisition/relocation of right of way 

– 3114). 

G. Utilities 

If necessary, the Local Agency shall be responsible for obtaining the proper clearance or approval from any 

utility company which may become involved in the Work. Prior to the Work being advertised for bids, the 

Local Agency shall certify in writing to the State that all such clearances have been obtained. 

a) Railroads 

If the Work involves modification of a railroad company’s facilities and such modification will be 

accomplished by the railroad company, the Local Agency shall make timely application to the Public 

Utilities commission requesting its order providing for the installation of the proposed improvements 

and not proceed with that part of the Work without compliance. The Local Agency shall also establish 

contact with the railroad company involved for the purpose of complying with applicable provisions of 

23 C.F.R. 646, subpart B, concerning federal-aid projects involving railroad facilities and: 

b) Execute an agreement setting out what work is to be accomplished and the location(s) thereof, and which 

costs shall be eligible for federal participation. 

c) Obtain the railroad’s detailed estimate of the cost of the Work. 

d) Establish future maintenance responsibilities for the proposed installation. 

e) Proscribe future use or dispositions of the proposed improvements in the event of abandonment or 

elimination of a grade crossing. 

f) Establish future repair and/or replacement responsibilities in the event of accidental destruction or 

damage to the installation. 

H. Environmental Obligations 

The Local Agency shall perform all Work in accordance with the requirements of the current federal and 

state environmental regulations including the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) as 

applicable. 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 7 of 21 
 

I. Maintenance Obligations 

The Local Agency shall maintain and operate the Work constructed under this Agreement at its own cost and 

expense during their useful life, in a manner satisfactory to the State and FHWA, and the Local Agency shall 

provide for such maintenance and operations obligations each year. Such maintenance and operations shall 

be conducted in accordance with all applicable statutes, ordinances and regulations pertaining to maintaining 

such improvements. The State and FHWA may make periodic inspections to verify that such improvements 

are being adequately maintained. 

7. OPTION LETTER MODIFICATION 

An option letter may be used to add a phase without increasing total budgeted funds, increase or decrease the 

encumbrance amount as shown on Exhibit C, and/or transfer funds from one phase to another. Option letter 

modification is limited to the specific scenarios listed below. The option letter shall not be deemed valid until 

signed by the State Controller or an authorized delegate. 

A. Option to add a phase and/or increase or decrease the total encumbrance amount. 

The State may require the Local Agency to begin a phase that may include Design, Construction, 

Environmental, Utilities, ROW Incidentals or Miscellaneous (this does not apply to Acquisition/Relocation 

or Railroads) as detailed in Exhibit A and at the same terms and conditions stated in the original Agreement, 

with the total budgeted funds remaining the same. The State may simultaneously increase and/or decrease 

the total encumbrance amount by replacing the original funding exhibit (Exhibit C) in the original Agreement 

with an updated Exhibit C-1 (subsequent exhibits to Exhibit C-1 shall be labeled C-2, C-3, etc). The State 

may exercise this option by providing a fully executed option to the Local Agency within thirty (30) days 

before the initial targeted start date of the phase, in a form substantially equivalent to Exhibit D. If the State 

exercises this option, the Agreement will be considered to include this option provision. 

B. Option to transfer funds from one phase to another phase. 

The State may require or permit the Local Agency to transfer funds from one phase (Design, Construction, 

Environmental, Utilities, ROW Incidentals or Miscellaneous) to another as a result of changes to state, 

federal, and local match. The original funding exhibit (Exhibit C) in the original Agreement will be replaced 

with an updated Exhibit C-1 (subsequent exhibits to Exhibit C-1 shall be labeled C-2, C-3, etc.) and attached 

to the option letter. The funds transferred from one phase to another are subject to the same terms and 

conditions stated in the original Agreement with the total budgeted funds remaining the same. The State may 

unilaterally exercise this option by providing a fully executed option to the Local Agency within thirty (30) 

days before the initial targeted start date of the phase, in a form substantially equivalent to Exhibit D. Any 

transfer of funds from one phase to another is limited to an aggregate maximum of 24.99% of the original 

dollar amount of either phase affected by a transfer. A bilateral amendment is required for any transfer 

exceeding 24.99% of the original dollar amount of the phase affected by the increase or decrease. 

C. Option to do both Options A and B. 

The State may require the Local Agency to add a phase as detailed in Exhibit A, and encumber and transfer 

funds from one phase to another. The original funding exhibit (Exhibit C) in the original Agreement will be 

replaced with an updated Exhibit C-1 (subsequent exhibits to Exhibit C-1 shall be labeled C-2, C-3, etc.) 

and attached to the option letter. The addition of a phase and encumbrance and transfer of funds are subject 

to the same terms and conditions stated in the original Agreement with the total budgeted funds remaining 

the same. The State may unilaterally exercise this option by providing a fully executed option to the Local 

Agency within thirty (30) days before the initial targeted start date of the phase, in a form substantially 

equivalent to Exhibit D. 

8. PAYMENTS 

The State shall, in accordance with the provisions of this §8, pay the Local Agency in the amounts and using the 

methods set forth below: 

A. Maximum Amount 

The maximum amount payable is set forth in Exhibit C as determined by the State from available funds. 

Payments to the Local Agency are limited to the unpaid encumbered balance of the Contract set forth in 

Exhibit C. The Local Agency shall provide its match share of the costs as evidenced by an appropriate 

ordinance/resolution or other authority letter which expressly authorizes the Local Agency the authority to 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 8 of 21 
 

enter into this Agreement and to expend its match share of the Work. A copy of such ordinance/resolution or 

authority letter is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

B. Payment 

i. Advance, Interim and Final Payments 

Any advance payment allowed under this Contract or in Exhibit C shall comply with State Fiscal Rules 

and be made in accordance with the provisions of this Contract or such Exhibit. The Local Agency shall 

initiate any payment requests by submitting invoices to the State in the form and manner approved by 

the State.  

ii. Interest 

The State shall fully pay each invoice within 45 days of receipt thereof if the amount invoiced represents 

performance by the Local Agency previously accepted by the State. Uncontested amounts not paid by 

the State within 45 days shall bear interest on the unpaid balance beginning on the 46th day at a rate not 

to exceed one percent per month until paid in full; provided, however, that interest shall not accrue on 

unpaid amounts that are subject to a good faith dispute. The Local Agency shall invoice the State 

separately for accrued interest on delinquent amounts. The billing shall reference the delinquent 

payment, the number of days interest to be paid and the interest rate.  

iii. Available Funds-Contingency-Termination 

The State is prohibited by law from making commitments beyond the term of the State’s current fiscal 

year. Therefore, the Local Agency’s compensation beyond the State’s current Fiscal Year is contingent 

upon the continuing availability of State appropriations as provided in the Colorado Special Provisions. 

The State’s performance hereunder is also contingent upon the continuing availability of federal funds. 

Payments pursuant to this Contract shall be made only from available funds encumbered for this Contract 

and the State’s liability for such payments shall be limited to the amount remaining of such encumbered 

funds. If State or federal funds are not appropriated, or otherwise become unavailable to fund this 

Contract, the State may terminate this Contract immediately, in whole or in part, without further liability 

in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

iv. Erroneous Payments 

At the State’s sole discretion, payments made to the Local Agency in error for any reason, including, but 

not limited to overpayments or improper payments, and unexpended or excess funds received by the 

Local Agency, may be recovered from the Local Agency by deduction from subsequent payments under 

this Contract or other contracts, Agreements or agreements between the State and the Local Agency or 

by other appropriate methods and collected as a debt due to the State. Such funds shall not be paid to 

any party other than the State. 

C. Use of Funds 

Contract Funds shall be used only for eligible costs identified herein.  

D. Matching Funds 

The Local Agency shall provide matching funds as provided in §8.A. and Exhibit C. The Local Agency shall 

have raised the full amount of matching funds prior to the Effective Date and shall report to the State 

regarding the status of such funds upon request. The Local Agency’s obligation to pay all or any part of any 

matching funds, whether direct or contingent, only extend to funds duly and lawfully appropriated for the 

purposes of this Agreement by the authorized representatives of the Local Agency and paid into the Local 

Agency’s treasury. The Local Agency represents to the State that the amount designated “Local Agency 

Matching Funds” in Exhibit C has been legally appropriated for the purpose of this Agreement by its 

authorized representatives and paid into its treasury. The Local Agency does not by this Agreement 

irrevocably pledge present cash reserves for payments in future fiscal years, and this Agreement is not 

intended to create a multiple-fiscal year debt of the Local Agency. The Local Agency shall not pay or be 

liable for any claimed interest, late charges, fees, taxes or penalties of any nature, except as required by the 

Local Agency’s laws or policies.  

E. Reimbursement of Local Agency Costs 

The State shall reimburse the Local Agency’s allowable costs, not exceeding the maximum total amount 

described in Exhibit C and §8. The applicable principles described in 49 C.F.R. 18 Subpart C and 49 C.F.R. 

18.22 shall govern the State’s obligation to reimburse all costs incurred by the Local Agency and submitted 

to the State for reimbursement hereunder, and the Local Agency shall comply with all such principles. The 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 9 of 21 
 

State shall reimburse the Local Agency for the federal-aid share of properly documented costs related to the 

Work after review and approval thereof, subject to the provisions of this Agreement and Exhibit C. However, 

any costs incurred by the Local Agency prior to the date of FHWA authorization for the Work and prior to 

the Effective Date shall not be reimbursed absent specific FHWA and State Controller approval thereof. 

Costs shall be: 

i. Reasonable and Necessary 

Reasonable and necessary to accomplish the Work and for the Goods and Services provided. 

ii. Net Cost 

Actual net cost to the Local Agency (i.e. the price paid minus any items of value received by the Local 

Agency that reduce the cost actually incurred). 

9. ACCOUNTING 

The Local Agency shall establish and maintain accounting systems in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting standards (a separate set of accounts, or as a separate and integral part of its current accounting 

scheme). Such accounting systems shall, at a minimum, provide as follows: 

A. Local Agency Performing the Work 

If Local Agency is performing the Work, all allowable costs, including any approved services contributed by 

the Local Agency or others, shall be documented using payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, vouchers, 

and other applicable records. 

B. Local Agency-Checks or Draws 

Checks issued or draws made by the Local Agency shall be made or drawn against properly signed vouchers 

detailing the purpose thereof. All checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders, and other accounting 

documents shall be on file in the office of the Local Agency, clearly identified, readily accessible, and to the 

extent feasible, kept separate and apart from all other Work documents. 

C. State-Administrative Services 

The State may perform any necessary administrative support services required hereunder. The Local Agency 

shall reimburse the State for the costs of any such services from the Budget as provided for in Exhibit C. If 

FHWA funding is not available or is withdrawn, or if the Local Agency terminates this Agreement prior to 

the Work being approved or completed, then all actual incurred costs of such services and assistance provided 

by the State shall be the Local Agency’s sole expense. 

D. Local Agency-Invoices 

The Local Agency’s invoices shall describe in detail the reimbursable costs incurred by the Local Agency 

for which it seeks reimbursement, the dates such costs were incurred and the amounts thereof, and shall not 

be submitted more often than monthly. 

E. Invoicing Within 60 Days 

The State shall not be liable to reimburse the Local Agency for any costs unless CDOT receives such invoices 

within 60 days after the date for which payment is requested, including final invoicing. Final payment to the 

Local Agency may be withheld at the discretion of the State until completion of final audit. Any costs incurred 

by the Local Agency that are not allowable under 49 C.F.R. 18 shall be reimbursed by the Local Agency, or 

the State may offset them against any payments due from the State to the Local Agency. 

F. Reimbursement of State Costs 

CDOT shall perform Oversight and the Local Agency shall reimburse CDOT for its related costs. The Local 

Agency shall pay invoices within 60 days after receipt thereof. If the Local Agency fails to remit payment 

within 60 days, at CDOT’s request, the State is authorized to withhold an equal amount from future 

apportionment due the Local Agency from the Highway Users Tax Fund and to pay such funds directly to 

CDOT.  Interim funds shall be payable from the State Highway Supplementary Fund (400) until CDOT is 

reimbursed. If the Local Agency fails to make payment within 60 days, it shall pay interest to the State at a 

rate of one percent per month on the delinquent amounts until the billing is paid in full. CDOT’s invoices 

shall describe in detail the reimbursable costs incurred, the dates incurred and the amounts thereof, and shall 

not be submitted more often than monthly. 

10. REPORTING - NOTIFICATION 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 10 of 21 
 

Reports, Evaluations, and Reviews required under this §10 shall be in accordance with the procedures of and in 

such form as prescribed by the State and in accordance with §18, if applicable. 

A. Performance, Progress, Personnel, and Funds 

The Local Agency shall submit a report to the State upon expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement, 

containing an Evaluation and Review of the Local Agency’s performance and the final status of the Local 

Agency's obligations hereunder.  

B. Litigation Reporting 

Within 10 days after being served with any pleading related to this Agreement, in a legal action filed with a 

court or administrative agency, the Local Agency shall notify the State of such action and deliver copies of 

such pleadings to the State’s principal representative as identified herein. If the State or its principal 

representative is not then serving, such notice and copies shall be delivered to the Executive Director of 

CDOT. 

C. Noncompliance 

The Local Agency’s failure to provide reports and notify the State in a timely manner in accordance with this 

§10 may result in the delay of payment of funds and/or termination as provided under this Agreement. 

D. Documents 

Upon request by the State, the Local Agency shall provide the State, or its authorized representative, copies 

of all documents, including contracts and subcontracts, in its possession related to the Work. 

11. LOCAL AGENCY RECORDS 

A. Maintenance 

The Local Agency shall make, keep, maintain, and allow inspection and monitoring by the State of a complete 

file of all records, documents, communications, notes and other written materials, electronic media files, and 

communications, pertaining in any manner to the Work or the delivery of Services (including, but not limited 

to the operation of programs) or Goods hereunder. The Local Agency shall maintain such records until the 

last to occur of the following: (i) a period of three years after the date this Agreement is completed or 

terminated, or (ii) three years after final payment is made hereunder, whichever is later, or (iii) for such 

further period as may be necessary to resolve any pending matters, or (iv) if an audit is occurring, or the 

Local Agency has received notice that an audit is pending, then until such audit has been completed and its 

findings have been resolved (collectively, the “Record Retention Period”). 

B. Inspection 

The Local Agency shall permit the State, the federal government and any other duly authorized agent of a 

governmental agency to audit, inspect, examine, excerpt, copy and/or transcribe the Local Agency's records 

related to this Agreement during the Record Retention Period to assure compliance with the terms hereof or 

to evaluate the Local Agency's performance hereunder. The State reserves the right to inspect the Work at all 

reasonable times and places during the term of this Agreement, including any extension. If the Work fails to 

conform to the requirements of this Agreement, the State may require the Local Agency promptly to bring 

the Work into conformity with Agreement requirements, at the Local Agency’s sole expense. If the Work 

cannot be brought into conformance by re-performance or other corrective measures, the State may require 

the Local Agency to take necessary action to ensure that future performance conforms to Agreement 

requirements and may exercise the remedies available under this Agreement at law or in equity in lieu of or 

in conjunction with such corrective measures. 

C. Monitoring 

The Local Agency also shall permit the State, the federal government or any other duly authorized agent of 

a governmental agency, in their sole discretion, to monitor all activities conducted by the Local Agency 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement using any reasonable procedure, including, but not limited to: internal 

evaluation procedures, examination of program data, special analyses, on-site checking, formal audit 

examinations, or any other procedures. All such monitoring shall be performed in a manner that shall not 

unduly interfere with the Local Agency’s performance hereunder. 

D. Final Audit Report 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 11 of 21 
 

If an audit is performed on the Local Agency’s records for any fiscal year covering a portion of the term of 

this Agreement, the Local Agency shall submit a copy of the final audit report to the State or its principal 

representative at the address specified herein. 

12. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION-STATE RECORDS 

The Local Agency shall comply with the provisions of this §12 if it becomes privy to confidential information in 

connection with its performance hereunder. Confidential information, includes, but is not necessarily limited to, 

state records, personnel records, and information concerning individuals.  Nothing in this §12 shall be construed 

to require the Local Agency to violate the Colorado Open Records Act, C.R.S. §§ 24-72-1001 et seq. 

A. Confidentiality 

The Local Agency shall keep all State records and information confidential at all times and to comply with 

all laws and regulations concerning confidentiality of information. Any request or demand by a third party 

for State records and information in the possession of the Local Agency shall be immediately forwarded to 

the State’s principal representative. 

B. Notification 

The Local Agency shall notify its agents, employees and assigns who may come into contact with State 

records and confidential information that each is subject to the confidentiality requirements set forth herein, 

and shall provide each with a written explanation of such requirements before they are permitted to access 

such records and information. 

C. Use, Security, and Retention 

Confidential information of any kind shall not be distributed or sold to any third party or used by the Local 

Agency or its agents in any way, except as authorized by the Agreement and as approved by the State. The 

Local Agency shall provide and maintain a secure environment that ensures confidentiality of all State 

records and other confidential information wherever located. Confidential information shall not be retained 

in any files or otherwise by the Local Agency or its agents, except as set forth in this Agreement and approved 

by the State. 

D. Disclosure-Liability 

Disclosure of State records or other confidential information by the Local Agency for any reason may be 

cause for legal action by third parties against the Local Agency, the State or their respective agents. The 

Local Agency is prohibited from providing indemnification to the State pursuant to the Constitution of the 

State of Colorado, Article XI, Section 1, however, the Local Agency shall be responsible for any and all 

claims, damages, liability and court awards including costs, expenses, and attorney fees and related costs, 

incurred as a result of any act or omission by the Local Agency, or its employees, agents, or assignees 

pursuant to this §12. 

13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Local Agency shall not engage in any business or personal activities or practices or maintain any relationships 

which conflict in any way with the full performance of the Local Agency’s obligations hereunder. The Local 

Agency acknowledges that with respect to this Agreement even the appearance of a conflict of interest is harmful 

to the State’s interests. Absent the State’s prior written approval, the Local Agency shall refrain from any 

practices, activities or relationships that reasonably appear to be in conflict with the full performance of the Local 

Agency’s obligations to the State hereunder. If a conflict or appearance exists, or if the Local Agency is uncertain 

whether a conflict or the appearance of a conflict of interest exists, the Local Agency shall submit to the State a 

disclosure statement setting forth the relevant details for the State’s consideration. Failure to promptly submit a 

disclosure statement or to follow the State’s direction in regard to the apparent conflict constitutes a breach of 

this Agreement. 

14. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

The Local Agency makes the following specific representations and warranties, each of which was relied on by 

the State in entering into this Agreement. 

A. Standard and Manner of Performance 

The Local Agency shall perform its obligations hereunder, including in accordance with the highest 

professional standard of care, skill and diligence and in the sequence and manner set forth in this Agreement.  

B. Legal Authority – The Local Agency and the Local Agency’s Signatory 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 12 of 21 
 

The Local Agency warrants that it possesses the legal authority to enter into this Agreement and that it has 

taken all actions required by its procedures, by-laws, and/or applicable laws to exercise that authority, and to 

lawfully authorize its undersigned signatory to execute this Agreement, or any part thereof, and to bind the 

Local Agency to its terms. If requested by the State, the Local Agency shall provide the State with proof of 

the Local Agency’s authority to enter into this Agreement within 15 days of receiving such request. 

C. Licenses, Permits, Etc. 

The Local Agency represents and warrants that as of the Effective Date it has, and that at all times during the 

term hereof it shall have, at its sole expense, all licenses, certifications, approvals, insurance, permits, and 

other authorization required by law to perform its obligations hereunder. The Local Agency warrants that it 

shall maintain all necessary licenses, certifications, approvals, insurance, permits, and other authorizations 

required to properly perform this Agreement, without reimbursement by the State or other adjustment in 

Agreement Funds. Additionally, all employees and agents of the Local Agency performing Services under 

this Agreement shall hold all required licenses or certifications, if any, to perform their responsibilities. The 

Local Agency, if a foreign corporation or other foreign entity transacting business in the State of Colorado, 

further warrants that it currently has obtained and shall maintain any applicable certificate of authority to 

transact business in the State of Colorado and has designated a registered agent in Colorado to accept service 

of process. Any revocation, withdrawal or non-renewal of licenses, certifications, approvals, insurance, 

permits or any such similar requirements necessary for the Local Agency to properly perform the terms of 

this Agreement shall be deemed to be a material breach by the Local Agency and constitute grounds for 

termination of this Agreement. 

15. INSURANCE 

The Local Agency and its contractors shall obtain and maintain insurance as specified in this section at all times 

during the term of this Agreement: All policies evidencing the insurance coverage required hereunder shall be 

issued by insurance companies satisfactory to the Local Agency and the State. 

A. The Local Agency 

i. Public Entities 

If the Local Agency is a "public entity" within the meaning of the Colorado Governmental Immunity 

Act, CRS §24-10-101, et seq., as amended (the “GIA”), then the Local Agency shall maintain at all times 

during the term of this Agreement such liability insurance, by commercial policy or self-insurance, as is 

necessary to meet its liabilities under the GIA. The Local Agency shall show proof of such insurance 

satisfactory to the State, if requested by the State. The Local Agency shall require each Agreement with 

their Consultant and Contractor, that are providing Goods or Services hereunder, to include the insurance 

requirements necessary to meet Consultant or Contractor liabilities under the GIA. 

ii. Non-Public Entities 

If the Local Agency is not a "public entity" within the meaning of the Governmental Immunity Act, the 

Local Agency shall obtain and maintain during the term of this Agreement insurance coverage and 

policies meeting the same requirements set forth in §15(B) with respect to sub-contractors that are not 

"public entities". 

B. Contractors 

The Local Agency shall require each contract with Contractors, Subcontractors, or Consultants, other than 

those that are public entities, providing Goods or Services in connection with this Agreement, to include 

insurance requirements substantially similar to the following: 

i. Worker’s Compensation 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance as required by State statute, and Employer’s Liability Insurance 

covering all of the Local Agency’s Contractors, Subcontractors, or Consultant’s employees acting within 

the course and scope of their employment. 

ii. General Liability 

Commercial General Liability Insurance written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 10/93 or equivalent, 

covering premises operations, fire damage, independent contractors, products and completed operations, 

blanket  liability, personal injury, and advertising liability with minimum limits as follows: (a) 

$1,000,000 each occurrence; (b) $1,000,000 general aggregate; (c) $1,000,000 products and completed 

operations aggregate; and (d) $50,000 any one fire. If any aggregate limit is reduced below $1,000,000 

because of claims made or paid, contractors, subcontractors, and consultants shall immediately obtain 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 13 of 21 
 

additional insurance to restore the full aggregate limit and furnish to the Local Agency a certificate or 

other document satisfactory to the Local Agency showing compliance with this provision. 

iii. Automobile Liability 

Automobile Liability Insurance covering any auto (including owned, hired and non-owned autos) with 

a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident combined single limit. 

iv. Additional Insured 

The Local Agency and the State shall be named as additional insured on the Commercial General 

Liability policies (leases and construction contracts require additional insured coverage for completed 

operations on endorsements CG 2010 11/85, CG 2037, or equivalent). 

v. Primacy of Coverage 

Coverage required of the Consultants or Contractors shall be primary over any insurance or self-

insurance program carried by the Local Agency or the State. 

vi. Cancellation 

The above insurance policies shall include provisions preventing cancellation or non-renewal without at 

least 45 days prior notice to the Local Agency and the State by certified mail. 

vii. Subrogation Waiver 

All insurance policies in any way related to this Agreement and secured and maintained by the Local 

Agency’s Consultants or Contractors as required herein shall include clauses stating that each carrier 

shall waive all rights of recovery, under subrogation or otherwise, against the Local Agency or the State, 

its agencies, institutions, organizations, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

C. Certificates 

The Local Agency and all Contractors, subcontractors, or Consultants shall provide certificates showing 

insurance coverage required hereunder to the State within seven business days of the Effective Date of this 

Agreement. No later than 15 days prior to the expiration date of any such coverage, the Local Agency and 

each contractor, subcontractor, or consultant shall deliver to the State or the Local Agency certificates of 

insurance evidencing renewals thereof. In addition, upon request by the State at any other time during the 

term of this Agreement or any sub-contract, the Local Agency and each contractor, subcontractor, or 

consultant shall, within 10 days of such request, supply to the State evidence satisfactory to the State of 

compliance with the provisions of this §15. 

16. DEFAULT-BREACH 

A. Defined 

In addition to any breaches specified in other sections of this Agreement, the failure of either Party to perform 

any of its material obligations hereunder in whole or in part or in a timely or satisfactory manner constitutes 

a breach. 

B Notice and Cure Period 

In the event of a breach, notice of such shall be given in writing by the aggrieved Party to the other Party in 

the manner provided in §18. If such breach is not cured within 30 days of receipt of written notice, or if a 

cure cannot be completed within 30 days, or if cure of the breach has not begun within 30 days and pursued 

with due diligence, the State may exercise any of the remedies set forth in §17. Notwithstanding anything to 

the contrary herein, the State, in its sole discretion, need not provide advance notice or a cure period and may 

immediately terminate this Agreement in whole or in part if reasonably necessary to preserve public safety 

or to prevent immediate public crisis. 

17. REMEDIES 

If the Local Agency is in breach under any provision of this Agreement, the State shall have all of the remedies 

listed in this §17 in addition to all other remedies set forth in other sections of this Agreement following the notice 

and cure period set forth in §16(B). The State may exercise any or all of the remedies available to it, in its sole 

discretion, concurrently or consecutively. 

A. Termination for Cause and/or Breach 

If the Local Agency fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder with such diligence as is required to 

ensure its completion in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and in a timely manner, the State 

may notify the Local Agency of such non-performance in accordance with the provisions herein. If the Local 

Agency thereafter fails to promptly cure such non-performance within the cure period, the State, at its option, 

may terminate this entire Agreement or such part of this Agreement as to which there has been delay or a 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 14 of 21 
 

failure to properly perform. Exercise by the State of this right shall not be deemed a breach of its obligations 

hereunder. The Local Agency shall continue performance of this Agreement to the extent not terminated, if 

any. 

i. Obligations and Rights 

To the extent specified in any termination notice, the Local Agency shall not incur further obligations or 

render further performance hereunder past the effective date of such notice, and shall terminate 

outstanding orders and sub-Agreements with third parties. However, the Local Agency shall complete 

and deliver to the State all Work, Services and Goods not cancelled by the termination notice and may 

incur obligations as are necessary to do so within this Agreement’s terms. At the sole discretion of the 

State, the Local Agency shall assign to the State all of the Local Agency's right, title, and interest under 

such terminated orders or sub-Agreements. Upon termination, the Local Agency shall take timely, 

reasonable and necessary action to protect and preserve property in the possession of the Local Agency 

in which the State has an interest. All materials owned by the State in the possession of the Local Agency 

shall be immediately returned to the State. All Work Product, at the option of the State, shall be delivered 

by the Local Agency to the State and shall become the State’s property. 

ii. Payments 

The State shall reimburse the Local Agency only for accepted performance received up to the date of 

termination. If, after termination by the State, it is determined that the Local Agency was not in default 

or that the Local Agency's action or inaction was excusable, such termination shall be treated as a 

termination in the public interest and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be the same as if this 

Agreement had been terminated in the public interest, as described herein. 

iii. Damages and Withholding 

Notwithstanding any other remedial action by the State, the Local Agency also shall remain liable to the 

State for any damages sustained by the State by virtue of any breach under this Agreement by the Local 

Agency and the State may withhold any payment to the Local Agency for the purpose of mitigating the 

State’s damages, until such time as the exact amount of damages due to the State from the Local Agency 

is determined. The State may withhold any amount that may be due to the Local Agency as the State 

deems necessary to protect the State, including loss as a result of outstanding liens or claims of former 

lien holders, or to reimburse the State for the excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods or services. 

The Local Agency shall be liable for excess costs incurred by the State in procuring from third parties 

replacement Work, Services or substitute Goods as cover. 

B. Early Termination in the Public Interest 

The State is entering into this Agreement for the purpose of carrying out the public policy of the State of 

Colorado, as determined by its Governor, General Assembly, and/or Courts. If this Agreement ceases to 

further the public policy of the State, the State, in its sole discretion, may terminate this Agreement in whole 

or in part. Exercise by the State of this right shall not constitute a breach of the State’s obligations hereunder. 

This subsection shall not apply to a termination of this Agreement by the State for cause or breach by the 

Local Agency, which shall be governed by §17(A) or as otherwise specifically provided for herein. 

i. Method and Content 

The State shall notify the Local Agency of the termination in accordance with §18, specifying the 

effective date of the termination and whether it affects all or a portion of this Agreement.  

ii.  Obligations and Rights 

Upon receipt of a termination notice, the Local Agency shall be subject to and comply with the same 

obligations and rights set forth in §17(A)(i). 

iii. Payments 

If this Agreement is terminated by the State pursuant to this §17(B), the Local Agency shall be paid an 

amount which bears the same ratio to the total reimbursement under this Agreement as the Services 

satisfactorily performed bear to the total Services covered by this Agreement, less payments previously 

made. Additionally, if this Agreement is less than 60% completed, the State may reimburse the Local 

Agency for a portion of actual out-of-pocket expenses (not otherwise reimbursed under this Agreement) 

incurred by the Local Agency which are directly attributable to the uncompleted portion of the Local 

Agency’s obligations hereunder; provided that the sum of any and all reimbursement shall not exceed 

the maximum amount payable to the Local Agency hereunder. 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 15 of 21 
 

C. Remedies Not Involving Termination 

The State, its sole discretion, may exercise one or more of the following remedies in addition to other 

remedies available to it: 

i. Suspend Performance 

Suspend the Local Agency’s performance with respect to all or any portion of this Agreement pending 

necessary corrective action as specified by the State without entitling the Local Agency to an adjustment 

in price/cost or performance schedule. The Local Agency shall promptly cease performance and 

incurring costs in accordance with the State’s directive and the State shall not be liable for costs incurred 

by the Local Agency after the suspension of performance under this provision. 

ii. Withhold Payment 

Withhold payment to the Local Agency until corrections in the Local Agency’s performance are 

satisfactorily made and completed. 

iii. Deny Payment 

Deny payment for those obligations not performed that due to the Local Agency’s actions or inactions 

cannot be performed or, if performed, would be of no value to the State; provided that any denial of 

payment shall be reasonably related to the value to the State of the obligations not performed. 

iv. Removal 

Demand removal of any of the Local Agency’s employees, agents, or contractors whom the State deems 

incompetent, careless, insubordinate, unsuitable, or otherwise unacceptable, or whose continued relation 

to this Agreement is deemed to be contrary to the public interest or not in the State’s best interest. 

v. Intellectual Property  

If the Local Agency infringes on a patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other intellectual property 

right while performing its obligations under this Agreement, the Local Agency shall, at the State’s option 

(a) obtain for the State or the Local Agency the right to use such products and services; (b) replace any 

Goods, Services, or other product involved with non-infringing products or modify them so that they 

become non-infringing; or, (c) if neither of the foregoing alternatives are reasonably available, remove 

any infringing Goods, Services, or products and refund the price paid therefore to the State. 

18. NOTICES and REPRESENTATIVES 

Each individual identified below is the principal representative of the designating Party. All notices required to 

be given hereunder shall be hand delivered with receipt required or sent by certified or registered mail to such 

Party’s principal representative at the address set forth below. In addition to but not in lieu of a hard-copy notice, 

notice also may be sent by e-mail to the e-mail addresses, if any, set forth below. Either Party may from time to 

time designate by written notice substitute addresses or persons to whom such notices shall be sent. Unless 

otherwise provided herein, all notices shall be effective upon receipt. 

A.  If to State: B.  If to the Local Agency: 

 CDOT Region: 04  CITY OF EVANS 

 Jake Schuch  Dawn Anderson 

 Project Manager  Project Manager 

 1402 2nd Street  1100 37TH STREET 

 Greeley, CO 80631  EVANS, CO 80620 

 970-350-2205  970-475-1113 

 

19. RIGHTS IN DATA, DOCUMENTS, AND COMPUTER SOFTWARE 

Any software, research, reports, studies, data, photographs, negatives or other documents, drawings, models, 

materials, or work product of any type, including drafts, prepared by the Local Agency in the performance of its 

obligations under this Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the State and all Work Product shall be 

delivered to the State by the Local Agency upon completion or termination hereof. The State’s exclusive rights 

in such Work Product shall include, but not be limited to, the right to copy, publish, display, transfer, and prepare 

derivative works. The Local Agency shall not use, willingly allow, cause or permit such Work Product to be used 

for any purpose other than the performance of the Local Agency's obligations hereunder without the prior written 

consent of the State. 

20. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 16 of 21 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, nothing herein shall constitute a waiver, express or implied, 

of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protection, or other provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity 

Act, CRS §24-10-101, et seq., as amended. Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising from 

the negligence of the State of Colorado, its departments, institutions, agencies, boards, officials, and employees 

and of the Local Agency is controlled and limited by the provisions of the Governmental Immunity Act and the 

risk management statutes, CRS §24-30-1501, et seq., as amended. 

21. STATEWIDE CONTRACT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

If the maximum amount payable to the Local Agency under this Agreement is $100,000 or greater, either on the 

Effective Date or at any time thereafter, this §21 applies.  

The Local Agency agrees to be governed, and to abide, by the provisions of CRS §24-102-205, §24-102-206, 

§24-103-601, §24-103.5-101 and §24-105-102 concerning the monitoring of vendor performance on state 

agreements/contracts and inclusion of agreement/contract performance information in a statewide contract 

management system. 

The Local Agency’s performance shall be subject to Evaluation and Review in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, State law, including CRS §24-103.5-101, and State Fiscal Rules, Policies and 

Guidance. Evaluation and Review of the Local Agency’s performance shall be part of the normal Agreement 

administration process and the Local Agency’s performance will be systematically recorded in the statewide 

Agreement Management System. Areas of Evaluation and Review shall include, but shall not be limited to quality, 

cost and timeliness. Collection of information relevant to the performance of the Local Agency’s obligations 

under this Agreement shall be determined by the specific requirements of such obligations and shall include 

factors tailored to match the requirements of the Local Agency’s obligations. Such performance information shall 

be entered into the statewide Contract Management System at intervals established herein and a final Evaluation, 

Review and Rating shall be rendered within 30 days of the end of the Agreement term. The Local Agency shall 

be notified following each performance Evaluation and Review, and shall address or correct any identified 

problem in a timely manner and maintain work progress. 

Should the final performance Evaluation and Review determine that the Local Agency demonstrated a gross 

failure to meet the performance measures established hereunder, the Executive Director of the Colorado 

Department of Personnel and Administration (Executive Director), upon request by CDOT, and showing of good 

cause, may debar the Local Agency and prohibit the Local Agency from bidding on future Agreements. The Local 

Agency may contest the final Evaluation, Review and Rating by: (a) filing rebuttal statements, which may result 

in either removal or correction of the evaluation (CRS §24-105-102(6)), or (b) under CRS §24-105-102(6), 

exercising the debarment protest and appeal rights provided in CRS §§24-109-106, 107, 201 or 202, which may 

result in the reversal of the debarment and reinstatement of the Local Agency, by the Executive Director, upon 

showing of good cause. 

22. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 

The Local Agency and/or their contractors, subcontractors, and consultants shall at all times during the execution 

of this Agreement strictly adhere to, and comply with, all applicable federal and state laws, and their implementing 

regulations, as they currently exist and may hereafter be amended.   

23. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 

The Local Agency will comply with all requirements of Exhibit G and the Local Agency Contract Administration 

Checklist regarding DBE requirements for the Work, except that if the Local Agency desires to use its own DBE 

program to implement and administer the DBE provisions of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 under this Agreement, it must 

submit a copy of its program’s requirements to the State for review and approval before the execution of this 

Agreement. If the Local Agency uses any State- approved DBE program for this Agreement, the Local Agency 

shall be solely responsible to defend that DBE program and its use of that program against all legal and other 

challenges or complaints, at its sole cost and expense. Such responsibility includes, without limitation, 

determinations concerning DBE eligibility requirements and certification, adequate legal and factual bases for 

DBE goals and good faith efforts. State approval (if provided) of the Local Agency’s DBE program does not 

waive or modify the sole responsibility of the Local Agency for use of its program. 

24. DISPUTES 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this 

Agreement which is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by the Chief Engineer of the Department of 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 17 of 21 
 

Transportation. The decision of the Chief Engineer will be final and conclusive unless, within 30 calendar days 

after the date of receipt of a copy of such written decision, the Local Agency mails or otherwise furnishes to the 

State a written appeal addressed to the Executive Director of CDOT. In connection with any appeal proceeding 

under this clause, the Local Agency shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support 

of its appeal. Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, the Local Agency shall proceed diligently with the 

performance of this Agreement in accordance with the Chief Engineer’s decision. The decision of the Executive 

Director or his duly authorized representative for the determination of such appeals shall be final and conclusive 

and serve as final agency action. This dispute clause does not preclude consideration of questions of law in 

connection with decisions provided for herein. Nothing in this Agreement, however, shall be construed as making 

final the decision of any administrative official, representative, or board on a question of law. 

 

25. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Assignment 

The Local Agency’s rights and obligations hereunder are personal and may not be transferred, assigned or 

subcontracted without the prior written consent of the State. Any attempt at assignment, transfer, or 

subcontracting without such consent shall be void. All assignments and subcontracts approved by the Local 

Agency or the State are subject to all of the provisions hereof. The Local Agency shall be solely responsible 

for all aspects of subcontracting arrangements and performance. 

B. Binding Effect 

Except as otherwise provided in §25(A), all provisions herein contained, including the benefits and burdens, 

shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties’ respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, and 

assigns. 

C. Captions 

The captions and headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, and shall not be used to 

interpret, define, or limit its provisions. 

D. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in multiple identical original counterparts, all of which shall constitute one 

agreement. 

E. Entire Understanding 

This Agreement represents the complete integration of all understandings between the Parties and all prior 

representations and understandings, oral or written, are merged herein. Prior or contemporaneous addition, 

deletion, or other amendment hereto shall not have any force or affect whatsoever, unless embodied herein. 

F. Indemnification - General 

If Local Agency is not a “public entity” within the meaning of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, 

CRS §24-10-101, et seq., the Local Agency shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State, its employees 

and agents, against any and all claims, damages, liability and court awards including costs, expenses, and 

attorney fees and related costs, incurred as a result of any act or omission by the Local Agency, or its 

employees, agents, subcontractors or assignees pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  This clause is not 

applicable to a Local Agency that is a "public entity" within the meaning of the Colorado Governmental 

Immunity Act, CRS §24-10-101, et seq.  

G. Jurisdiction and Venue 

All suits, actions, or proceedings related to this Agreement shall be held in the State of Colorado and exclusive 

venue shall be in the City and County of Denver. 

H. Limitations of Liability 

Any and all limitations of liability and/or damages in favor of the Local Agency contained in any document 

attached to and/or incorporated by reference into this Agreement, whether referred to as an exhibit, 

attachment, schedule, or any other name, are void and of no effect. This includes, but is not necessarily 

limited to, limitations on (i) the types of liabilities, (ii) the types of damages, (iii) the amount of damages, 

and (iv) the source of payment for damages. 

I. Modification 

i. By the Parties 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 18 of 21 
 

Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, modifications of this Agreement shall not be effective 

unless agreed to in writing by both parties in an amendment to this Agreement, properly executed and 

approved in accordance with applicable Colorado State law, State Fiscal Rules, and Office of the State 

Controller Policies, including, but not limited to, the policy entitled MODIFICATIONS OF 

AGREEMENTS - TOOLS AND FORMS. 

ii. By Operation of Law 

This Agreement is subject to such modifications as may be required by changes in Federal or Colorado 

State law, or their implementing regulations. Any such required modification automatically shall be 

incorporated into and be part of this Agreement on the effective date of such change, as if fully set forth 

herein 

J. Order of Precedence 

The provisions of this Agreement shall govern the relationship of the State and the Local Agency. In the 

event of conflicts or inconsistencies between this Agreement and its exhibits and attachments, such conflicts 

or inconsistencies shall be resolved by reference to the documents in the following order of priority: 

i. Colorado Special Provisions, 

ii. The provisions of the main body of this Agreement, 

iii. Exhibit A (Scope of Work), 

iv. Exhibit B (Local Agency Resolution), 

v. Exhibit C (Funding Provisions), 

vi. Exhibit D (Option Letter),  

vii. Exhibit E (Local Agency Contract Administration Checklist), 

viii. Other exhibits in descending order of their attachment.  

K. Severability 

Provided this Agreement can be executed and performance of the obligations of the Parties accomplished 

within its intent, the provisions hereof are severable and any provision that is declared invalid or becomes 

inoperable for any reason shall not affect the validity of any other provision hereof. 

L. Survival of Certain Agreement Terms 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, provisions of this Agreement requiring continued 

performance, compliance, or effect after termination hereof, shall survive such termination and shall be 

enforceable by the State if the Local Agency fails to perform or comply as required. 

M. Taxes 

The State is exempt from all federal excise taxes under IRC Chapter 32 (No. 84-730123K) and from all State 

and local government sales and use taxes under CRS §§39-26-101 and 201 et seq. Such exemptions apply 

when materials are purchased or services rendered to benefit the State; provided however, that certain 

political subdivisions (e.g., City of Denver) may require payment of sales or use taxes even though the 

product or service is provided to the State. The Local Agency shall be solely liable for paying such taxes as 

the State is prohibited from paying for or reimbursing the Local Agency for them 

N. Third Party Beneficiaries 

Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and obligations hereunder are reserved solely to the Parties, 

and not to any third party. Any services or benefits which third parties receive as a result of this Agreement 

are incidental to the Agreement, and do not create any rights for such third parties. 

O. Waiver 

Waiver of any breach of a term, provision, or requirement of this Agreement, or any right or remedy 

hereunder, whether explicitly or by lack of enforcement, shall not be construed or deemed as a waiver of any 

subsequent breach of such term, provision or requirement, or of any other term, provision, or requirement. 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

  



 

Document Builder Generated Page 19 of 21 
 

 

26. COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

The Special Provisions apply to all Agreements except where noted in italics. 

A. CONTROLLER'S APPROVAL. CRS §24-30-202 (1). 

This Agreement shall not be deemed valid until it has been approved by the Colorado State Controller or 

designee. 

B. FUND AVAILABILITY. CRS §24-30-202(5.5). 

Financial obligations of the State payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that 

purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available. 

C. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. 

No term or condition of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of 

any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions, of the Colorado Governmental 

Immunity Act, CRS §24-10-101 et seq., or the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§1346(b) and 2671 et 

seq., as applicable now or hereafter amended. 

D. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

The Local Agency shall perform its duties hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an employee. 

Neither The Local Agency nor any agent or employee of The Local Agency shall be deemed to be an agent 

or employee of the State. The Local Agency and its employees and agents are not entitled to unemployment 

insurance or workers compensation benefits through the State and the State shall not pay for or otherwise 

provide such coverage for The Local Agency or any of its agents or employees. Unemployment insurance 

benefits shall be available to The Local Agency and its employees and agents only if such coverage is made 

available by The Local Agency or a third party. The Local Agency shall pay when due all applicable 

employment taxes and income taxes and local head taxes incurred pursuant to this Agreement. The Local 

Agency shall not have authorization, express or implied, to bind the State to any Agreement, liability or 

understanding, except as expressly set forth herein. The Local Agency shall (a) provide and keep in force 

workers' compensation and unemployment compensation insurance in the amounts required by law, (b) 

provide proof thereof when requested by the State, and (c) be solely responsible for its acts and those of its 

employees and agents. 

E. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. 

The Local Agency shall strictly comply with all applicable federal and State laws, rules, and regulations in 

effect or hereafter established, including, without limitation, laws applicable to discrimination and unfair 

employment practices. 

F. CHOICE OF LAW. 

Colorado law, and rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, shall be applied in the interpretation, 

execution, and enforcement of this Agreement. Any provision included or incorporated herein by reference 

which conflicts with said laws, rules, and regulations shall be null and void. Any provision incorporated 

herein by reference which purports to negate this or any other Special Provision in whole or in part shall not 

be valid or enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of complaint, defense, or otherwise. 

Any provision rendered null and void by the operation of this provision shall not invalidate the remainder of 

this Agreement, to the extent capable of execution. 

G. BINDING ARBITRATION PROHIBITED. 

The State of Colorado does not agree to binding arbitration by any extra-judicial body or person. Any 

provision to the contrary in this contact or incorporated herein by reference shall be null and void. 

H. SOFTWARE PIRACY PROHIBITION. Governor's Executive Order D 002 00. 

State or other public funds payable under this Agreement shall not be used for the acquisition, operation, or 

maintenance of computer software in violation of federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions. 

The Local Agency hereby certifies and warrants that, during the term of this Agreement and any extensions, 

The Local Agency has and shall maintain in place appropriate systems and controls to prevent such improper 

use of public funds. If the State determines that The Local Agency is in violation of this provision, the State 

may exercise any remedy available at law or in equity or under this Agreement, including, without limitation, 



 

Document Builder Generated Page 20 of 21 
 

immediate termination of this Agreement and any remedy consistent with federal copyright laws or 

applicable licensing restrictions. 

I. EMPLOYEE FINANCIAL INTEREST. CRS §§24-18-201 and 24-50-507. 

The signatories aver that to their knowledge, no employee of the State has any personal or beneficial interest 

whatsoever in the service or property described in this Agreement. The Local Agency has no interest and 

shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of The Local Agency’s services and The Local Agency shall not employ any person having 

such known interests. 

J. VENDOR OFFSET. CRS §§24-30-202 (1) and 24-30-202.4.  

[Not Applicable to intergovernmental agreements]. Subject to CRS §24-30-202.4 (3.5), the State Controller 

may withhold payment under the State’s vendor offset intercept system for debts owed to State agencies for: 

(a) unpaid child support debts or child support arrearages; (b) unpaid balances of tax, accrued interest, or 

other charges specified in CRS §39-21-101, et seq.; (c) unpaid loans due to the Student Loan Division of the 

Department of Higher Education; (d) amounts required to be paid to the Unemployment Compensation Fund; 

and (e) other unpaid debts owing to the State as a result of final agency determination or judicial action. 

K. PUBLIC CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES. CRS §8-17.5-101.  

[Not Applicable to Agreements relating to the offer, issuance, or sale of securities, investment advisory 

services or fund management services, sponsored projects, intergovernmental Agreements, or information 

technology services or products and services]. The Local Agency certifies, warrants, and agrees that it does 

not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who shall perform work under this Agreement and 

shall confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment in the United 

States to perform work under this Agreement, through participation in the E-Verify Program or the State 

program established pursuant to CRS §8-17.5-102(5)(c), The Local Agency shall not knowingly employ or 

contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement or enter into a contract with a 

subcontractor that fails to certify to The Local Agency that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or 

contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement. The Local Agency (a) shall not use E-

Verify Program or State program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while 

this Agreement is being performed, (b) shall notify the subcontractor and the contracting State agency within 

three days if The Local Agency has actual knowledge that a subcontractor is employing or contracting with 

an illegal alien for work under this Agreement, (c) shall terminate the subcontract if a subcontractor does not 

stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three days of receiving the notice, and (d) shall 

comply with reasonable requests made in the course of an investigation, undertaken pursuant to CRS §8-

17.5-102(5), by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment. If The Local Agency participates in the 

State program, The Local Agency shall deliver to the contracting State agency, Institution of Higher 

Education or political subdivision, a written, notarized affirmation, affirming that The Local Agency has 

examined the legal work status of such employee, and shall comply with all of the other requirements of the 

State program. If The Local Agency fails to comply with any requirement of this provision or CRS §8-17.5-

101 et seq., the contracting State agency, institution of higher education or political subdivision may 

terminate this Agreement for breach and, if so terminated, The Local Agency shall be liable for damages. 

L. PUBLIC CONTRACTS WITH NATURAL PERSONS. CRS §24-76.5-101. 

The Local Agency, if a natural person eighteen (18) years of age or older, hereby swears and affirms under 

penalty of perjury that he or she (a) is a citizen or otherwise lawfully present in the United States pursuant to 

federal law, (b) shall comply with the provisions of CRS §24-76.5-101 et seq., and (c) has produced one form 

of identification required by CRS §24-76.5-103 prior to the effective date of this Agreement. 

SPs Effective 1/1/09 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

  



 

Document Builder Generated Page 21 of 21 
 

 

27. SIGNATURE PAGE 

Agreement Routing Number:  16-HA4-XC-00009 

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT 

* Persons signing for The Local Agency hereby swear and affirm that they are authorized to act on The Local 

Agency’s behalf and acknowledge that the State is relying on their representations to that effect. 
 

THE LOCAL AGENCY 

CITY OF EVANS 

Print: ________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

*Signature 

Date: __________________________ 

STATE OF COLORADO 

John W. Hickenlooper, GOVERNOR 

Colorado Department of Transportation 

Shailen P. Bhatt, Executive Director 

_____________________________________________ 

By: Joshua Laipply, P.E., Chief Engineer  

Date: __________________________ 

 

2nd Local Agency Signature if needed 

Print: ________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

*Signature 

Date: __________________________ 

LEGAL REVIEW 

Cynthia H. Coffman, Attorney General 

By:___________________________________________ 

Signature - Assistant Attorney General 

Date: _________________________ 

ALL AGREEMENTS REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE STATE CONTROLLER 

CRS §24-30-202 requires the State Controller to approve all State Agreements. This Agreement is not valid until signed 

and dated below by the State Controller or delegate. The Local Agency is not authorized to begin performance until such 

time. If The Local Agency begins performing prior thereto, the State of Colorado is not obligated to pay The Local 

Agency for such performance or for any goods and/or services provided hereunder. 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 

Robert Jaros, CPA, MBA, JD 

By:______________________________________________ 

Colorado Department of Transportation 

Date:_______________________ 

 



 

Page 1 of 3 

28. EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK  
 
 

 
 CDOT will oversee the City of Evans in the design and reconstruction of intersection improvements 
along 35th Avenue between Prairie View and 37th Street. This project will construct sidewalks, 
stormwater improvements, median islands, and asphalt paving. More exact design requirements will 
be established once the intergovernmental agreement is in place.  
The design and construction of this project will adhere to all applicable state and federal regulations 
including ADA requirements. A FOR was held in the spring of 2015 and construction is planned for the 
summer 2015. The project is being designed by the city's consultant and will be advertised for bids 
and awarded by the city. 
 



 

Page 1 of 1 

29. EXHIBIT B – LOCAL AGENCY RESOLUTION 
 
 
 

LOCAL AGENCY 
ORDINANCE 

or 
RESOLUTION 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

30. EXHIBIT C – FUNDING PROVISIONS 

A. Cost of Work Estimate 
The Local Agency has estimated the total cost the Work which is to be funded as follows: 

1   BUDGETED FUNDS       

        

  a. Federal Funds    

   (80.00% of Participating Costs)   $1,115,000.00 

       

  b.  Local Agency Matching Funds    

  (20.00% of Participating Costs)   $231,781.00 

      

   TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS     $1,346,781.00 

        

2  ESTIMATED CDOT-INCURRED COSTS     

        

  a. Federal Share   $0.00  

   (0% of Participating Costs)     

        

  b. Local Share     

   
Local Agency Share of Participating Costs 
Local Agency Share of Non-Participating Costs 

$0.00  
$0.00    

        

   Estimated to be Billed to Local Agency   $0.00  

        

     TOTAL ESTIMATED CDOT-INCURRED COSTS   $0.00  

        

3  ESTIMATED PAYMENT TO LOCAL AGENCY    

        

  a. Federal Funds Budgeted (1a)   $1,115,000.00 

 b. Less Estimated Federal Share of CDOT-Incurred Costs (2a)   $0.00 

  c. State Funds Budgeted (1c)   $0.00 

      

     TOTAL ESTIMATED PAYMENT TO LOCAL AGENCY   $1,115,000.00 

        

   
FOR CDOT ENCUMBRANCE PURPOSES 
   

  

*Note - $0.00 is currently available. Funds will be added in the 
future either by Option Letter or Amendment. 
Maximum Encumbrance $1,346,781.00 
   

   Net to be encumbered as follows:     $0.00 

  WBS Element 19741.20.10 Construc. 3301 $0.00 

 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

B. Matching Funds 
The matching ratio for the federal participating funds for this Work is 82.79% federal-aid funds 
(CFDA #20 2050) to 17.21% Local Agency and State funds, it being understood that such ratio 
applies only to the $1,346,781.00 that is eligible for federal participation, it being further 
understood that all non-participating costs are borne by the Local Agency at 100%. If the total 
participating cost of performance of the Work exceeds $1,346,781.00 and additional federal 
funds are made available for the Work, the Local Agency shall pay 17.21% of all such costs 
eligible for federal participation and 100% of all non-participating costs; if additional federal 
funds are not made available, the Local Agency shall pay all such excess costs. If the total 
participating cost of performance of the Work is less than $1,346,781.00, then the amounts of 
State and federal-aid funds will be decreased in accordance with the funding ratio described 
herein.  The performance of the Work shall be at no cost to the State. 

C. Maximum Amount Payable 
The maximum amount payable to the Local Agency under this Agreement shall be 
$1,115,000.00 (For CDOT accounting purposes, the federal funds of $1,115,000.00, State funds 
of $0.00, Local Agency matching funds of $231,781.00, and Local Agency Overmatch funds of 
$0.00 will be encumbered for a total encumbrance of $1,346,781.00), unless such amount is 
increased by an appropriate written modification to this Agreement executed before any 
increased cost is incurred. *** Note - $0.00 is currently available. Funds will be added in the 
future either by Option Letter or Amendment ***  It is understood and agreed by the parties 
hereto that the total cost of the Work stated hereinbefore is the best estimate available, based 
on the design data as approved at the time of execution of this Agreement, and that such cost is 
subject to revisions (in accord with the procedure in the previous sentence) agreeable to the 
parties prior to bid and award. 

D. Single Audit Act Amendment 
All state and local government and non-profit organization Sub-The Local Agencys receiving 
more than $750,000 from all funding sources defined as federal financial assistance for Single 
Audit Act Amendment purposes, shall comply with the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-
133 (Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations) see also, 49 C.F.R. 
18.20 through 18.26. The Single Audit Act Amendment requirements applicable to Sub-The 
Local Agencys receiving federal funds are as follows: 
i. Expenditure less than $750,000 

If the Sub-The Local Agency expends less than $750,000 in Federal funds (all federal 
sources, not just Highway funds) in its fiscal year then this requirement does not apply. 

ii. Expenditure exceeding than $750,000-Highway Funds Only 
If the Sub-The Local Agency expends more than $750,000 in Federal funds, but only 
received federal Highway funds (Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA 20.205) 
then a program specific audit shall be performed. This audit will examine the “financial” 
procedures and processes for this program area. 

iii. Expenditure exceeding than $750,000-Multiple Funding Sources 
If the Sub-The Local Agency expends more than $750,000 in Federal funds, and the Federal 
funds are from multiple sources (FTA, HUD, NPS, etc.) then the Single Audit Act applies, 
which is an audit on the entire organization/entity. 

iv. Independent CPA 
Single Audit shall only be conducted by an independent CPA, not by an auditor on staff. An 
audit is an allowable direct or indirect cost.



  

Page 1 of 2 

31. EXHIBIT D – OPTION LETTER 
 

SAMPLE IGA OPTION LETTER 
(This option has been created by the Office of the State Controller for CDOT use only)  

NOTE: This option is limited to the specific contract scenarios listed below  
AND may be used in place of exercising a formal amendment. 

 

Date:  
      

State Fiscal Year: 
      

Option Letter No.       Option Letter CMS Routing #  
      
Option Letter SAP #       

Original Contract CMS #       Original Contract SAP #       

 

Vendor name: _________________________________________________  
 

SUBJECT:  

A. Option to unilaterally authorize the Local Agency to begin a phase which may include Design, 
Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous ONLY (does not apply to 
Acquisition/Relocation or Railroads) and to update encumbrance amounts(a new Exhibit C must be 
attached with the option letter and shall be labeled C-1, future changes for this option shall be 
labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.). 

B. Option to unilaterally transfer funds from one phase to another phase (a new Exhibit C must be 
attached with the option letter and shall be labeled C-1, future changes for this option shall be 
labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.). 

C. Option to unilaterally do both A and B (a new Exhibit C must be attached with the option letter and 
shall be labeled C-1, future changes for this option shall be labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.). 

 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS: 

 

Option A (Insert the following language for use with the Option A): 

In accordance with the terms of the original Agreement (insert CMS routing # of the original 

Agreement) between the State of Colorado, Department of Transportation and (insert the Local 

Agency’s name here), the State hereby exercises the option to authorize the Local Agency to begin a 

phase that will include (describe which phase will be added and include all that apply – Design, 

Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous) and to encumber previously 

budgeted funds for the phase based upon changes in funding availability and authorization. The 

encumbrance for (Design, Construction, Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous)is 

(insert dollars here). A new Exhibit C-1 is made part of the original Agreement and replaces Exhibit 

C. (The following is a NOTE only, please delete when using this option. Future changes for this option 

for Exhibit C shall be labled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.).  

 

Option B (Insert the following language for use with Option B): 

In accordance with the terms of the original Agreement (insert CMS # of the original Agreement) 

between the State of Colorado, Department of Transportation and (insert the Local Agency’s name 

here), the State hereby exercises the option to transfer funds from (describe phase from which funds 

will be moved) to (describe phase to which funds will be moved) based on variance in actual phase 

costs and original phase estimates. A new Exhibit C-1 is made part of the original Agreement and 

replaces Exhibit C. (The following is a NOTE only so please delete when using this option: future 

changes for this option for Exhibit C shall be labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-4, etc.; and no more than 

24.99% of any phase may be moved using this option letter. A transfer greater than 24.99% must be 



  

Page 2 of 2 

made using an formal amendment).. 

 

Option C (Insert the following language for use with Option C): 

In accordance with the terms of the original Agreement (insert CMS routing # of original Agreement) 

between the State of Colorado, Department of Transportation and (insert the Local Agency’s name 

here), the State hereby exercises the option to 1) release the Local Agency to begin a phase that will 

include (describe which phase will be added and include all that apply – Design, Construction, 

Environmental, Utilities, ROW incidentals or Miscellaneous); 2) to encumber funds for the phase 

based upon changes in funding availability and authorization; and 3) to transfer funds from (describe 

phase from which funds will be moved) to (describe phase to which funds will be moved) based on 

variance in actual phase costs and original phase estimates. A new Exhibit C-1 is made part of the 

original Agreement and replaces Exhibit C. (The following is a NOTE only so please delete when 

using this option: future changes for this option for Exhibit C shall be labeled as follows: C-2, C-3, C-

4, etc.; and no more than 24.99% of any phase may be moved using this option letter. A transfer 

greater than 24.99% must be made using an formal amendment).    

 

(The following language must be included on ALL options): 

The total encumberance as a result of this option and all previous options and/or amendments is now 

(insert total encumberance amount), as referenced in Exhibit (C-1, C-2, etc., as appropriate). The 

total budgeted funds to satisfy services/goods ordered under the Agreement remains the same: 

(indicate total budgeted funds) as referenced in Exhibit (C-1, C-2, etc., as appropriate) of the original 

Agreement.  

 

The effective date of this option letter is upon approval of the State Controller or delegate. 

 

 

APPROVALS: 

 

State of Colorado: 

John W. Hickenlooper, Governor 

 

By: _____________________________________________ Date: __________________  

Executive Director, Colorado Department of Transportation 

 

ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE APPROVED BY THE STATE CONTROLLER 
 

CRS §24-30-202 requires the State Controller to approve all State Contracts. This Agreement is not valid 
until signed and dated below by the State Controller or delegate. Contractor is not authorized to begin 

performance until such time. If the Local Agency begins performing prior thereto, the State of Colorado 
is not obligated to pay the Local Agency for such performance or for any goods and/or services 

provided hereunder. 

 
State Controller 

Robert Jaros, CPA, MBA, JD 
 

  By: __________________________________ 
    
  Date: ________________________________ 

Form Updated: December 19, 2012



  

Page 1 of 4 

32. EXHIBIT E – LOCAL AGENCY CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
CHECKLIST



  

Page 2 of 4 



  

Page 3 of 4 



  

Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 



  

Page 1 of 1 

33. EXHIBIT F – CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS 
 

The Local Agency certifies, by signing this Agreement, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that: 

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf or the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress 
in connection with the awarding of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 
Agreement, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, Agreement, loan, or cooperative agreement, the 
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in 
accordance with its instructions. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to 
file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than $100,000 for each such failure. 

The prospective participant also agree by submitting his or her bid or proposal that he or she shall 
require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed 
$100,000 and that all such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Required by 23 CFR 635.112 



  

Page 1 of 1 

 

34. EXHIBIT G – DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
 

SECTION 1. Policy. 

It is the policy of the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) that disadvantaged business 
enterprises shall have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed 
in whole or in part with Federal funds under this agreement, pursuant to 49 CFR Part 26. 
Consequently, the 49 CFR Part IE DBE requirements the Colorado Department of Transportation DBE 
Program (or a Local Agency DBE Program approved in advance by the State) apply to this agreement. 

SECTION 2. DBE Obligation. 

The recipient or its the Local Agency agrees to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises as 
determined by the Office of Certification at the Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies have the 
maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole 
or in part with Federal funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, all participants or 
contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with the CDOT DBE program 
(or a Local Agency DBE Program approved in advance by the State) to ensure that disadvantaged 
business enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. Recipients 
and their contractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
award and performance of CDOT assisted contracts. 

SECTION 3 DBE Program. 

The Local Agency (sub-recipient) shall be responsible for obtaining the Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise Program of the Colorado Department of Transportation, 1988, as amended, and shall 
comply with the applicable provisions of the program. (If applicable). 

A copy of the DBE Program is available from and will be mailed to the Local Agency upon request: 

Business Programs Office 

Colorado Department of Transportation  

4201 East Arkansas Avenue, Room 287 

Denver, Colorado 80222-3400 

Phone:   (303) 757-9234 
 
 
 
revised 1/22/98      Required by 49 CFR Part 26 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

35. EXHIBIT H – LOCAL AGENCY PROCEDURES FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

THE LOCAL AGENCY SHALL USE THESE PROCEDURES TO IMPLEMENT FEDERAL-AID 
PROJECT AGREEMENTS WITH PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 172 applies to a federally funded local agency project 
agreement administered by CDOT that involves professional consultant services. 23 CFR 172.1 
states “The policies and procedures involve federally funded contracts for engineering and design 
related services for projects subject to the provisions of 23 U.S.C. 112(a) and are issued to ensure 
that a qualified consultant is obtained through an equitable selection process, that prescribed work 
is properly accomplished in a timely manner, and at fair and reasonable cost” and according to 23 
CFR 172.5 “Price shall not be used as a factor in the analysis and selection phase.” Therefore, local 
agencies must comply with these CFR requirements when obtaining professional consultant 
services under a federally funded consultant contract administered by CDOT. 

CDOT has formulated its procedures in Procedural Directive (P.D.) 400.1 and the related 
operations guidebook titled "Obtaining Professional Consultant Services". This directive and 
guidebook incorporate requirements from both Federal and State regulations, i.e., 23 CFR 172 and 
CRS §24-30-1401 et seq. Copies of the directive and the guidebook may be obtained upon request 
from CDOT's Agreements and Consultant Management Unit. [Local agencies should have their own 
written procedures on file for each method of procurement that addresses the items in 23 CFR 172]. 

Because the procedures and laws described in the Procedural Directive and the guidebook are 
quite lengthy, the subsequent steps serve as a short-hand guide to CDOT procedures that a local 
agency must follow in obtaining professional consultant services. This guidance follows the format 
of 23 CFR 172. The steps are:  

1. The contracting local agency shall document the need for obtaining professional services. 

2. Prior to solicitation for consultant services, the contracting local agency shall develop a 
detailed scope of work and a list of evaluation factors and their relative importance. The 
evaluation factors are those identified in C.R.S. 24-30-1403. Also, a detailed cost estimate 
should be prepared for use during negotiations.  

3. The contracting agency must advertise for contracts in conformity with the requirements of 
C.R.S. 24-30-1405. The public notice period, when such notice is required, is a minimum of 
15 days prior to the selection of the three most qualified firms and the advertising should be 
done in one or more daily newspapers of general circulation. 

4. The request for consultant services should include the scope of work, the evaluation factors 
and their relative importance, the method of payment, and the goal of 10% for Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) participation as a minimum for the project. 

5. The analysis and selection of the consultants shall be done in accordance with CRS §24-30-
1403. This section of the regulation identifies the criteria to be used in the evaluation of CDOT 
pre-qualified prime consultants and their team. It also shows which criteria are used to short-
list and to make a final selection. 

The short-list is based on the following evaluation factors: 

a. Qualifications, 

b. Approach to the Work, 

c. Ability to furnish professional services.  

d. Anticipated design concepts, and  

e. Alternative methods of approach for furnishing the professional services. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Evaluation factors for final selection are the consultant's: 

a. Abilities of their personnel, 

b. Past performance,  

c. Willingness to meet the time and budget requirement, 

d. Location, 

e. Current and projected work load, 

f. Volume of previously awarded contracts, and  

g. Involvement of minority consultants. 

6. Once a consultant is selected, the local agency enters into negotiations with the consultant to 
obtain a fair and reasonable price for the anticipated work. Pre-negotiation audits are 
prepared for contracts expected to be greater than $50,000. Federal reimbursements for 
costs are limited to those costs allowable under the cost principles of 48 CFR 31. Fixed fees 
(profit) are determined with consideration given to size, complexity, duration, and degree of 
risk involved in the work. Profit is in the range of six to 15 percent of the total direct and 
indirect costs. 

7. A qualified local agency employee shall be responsible and in charge of the Work to ensure 
that the work being pursued is complete, accurate, and consistent with the terms, conditions, 
and specifications of the contract. At the end of Work, the local agency prepares a 
performance evaluation (a CDOT form is available) on the consultant.  

8. Each of the steps listed above is to be documented in accordance with the provisions of 49 
CFR 18.42, which provide for records to be kept at least three years from the date that the 
local agency submits its final expenditure report. Records of projects under litigation shall be 
kept at least three years after the case has been settled. 

CRS §§24-30-1401 through 24-30-1408, 23 CFR Part 172, and P.D. 400.1, provide additional 
details for complying with the preceeding eight (8) steps. 



  

 
Page 1 of 12 

36. EXHIBIT I – FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

 



  

 
Page 2 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 3 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 4 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 5 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 6 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 7 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 8 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 9 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 10 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 11 of 12 

 



  

 
Page 12 of 12 

 
 



  

 
Page 1 of 3 

37. EXHIBIT J – FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 
Federal laws and regulations that may be applicable to the Work include: 

A. Uniform Administrative Requirements for Agreements and Cooperative Agreements to 
State and Local Governments (Common Rule) 

The "Uniform Administrative Requirements for Agreements and Cooperative Agreements to 
State and Local Governments (Common Rule), at 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 18, 
except to the extent that other applicable federal requirements (including the provisions of 23 
CFR Parts 172 or 633 or 635) are more specific than provisions of Part 18 and therefore 
supersede such Part 18 provisions. The requirements of 49 CFR 18 include, without limitation: 
the Local Agency/Contractor shall follow applicable procurement procedures, as required by 
section 18.36(d); the Local Agency/Contractor shall request and obtain prior CDOT approval of 
changes to any subcontracts in the manner,  and to the extent required by, applicable provisions 
of section 18.30; the Local Agency/Contractor shall comply with section 18.37 concerning any 
sub-Agreements; to expedite any CDOT approval, the Local Agency/Contractor's attorney, or 
other authorized representative, shall also submit a letter to CDOT certifying Local 
Agency/Contractor compliance with section 18.30 change order procedures, and with 18.36(d) 
procurement procedures, and with 18.37 sub-Agreement procedures, as applicable; 
the Local Agency/Contractor shall incorporate the specific contract provisions described in 
18.36(i) (which are also deemed incorporated herein) into any subcontract(s) for such services 
as terms and conditions of those subcontracts. 

B. Executive Order 11246 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965 entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as 
amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967 and as supplemented in Department 
of Labor regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60) (All construction contracts awarded in excess of 
$10,000 by the Local Agencys and their contractors or the Local Agencys). 

C. Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act 
The Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor 
regulations (29 CFR Part 3) (All contracts and sub-Agreements for construction or repair). 

D. Davis-Bacon Act 
The Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 CFR Part 5) (Construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by the Local 
Agencys and the Local Agencys when required by Federal Agreement program legislation. This 
act requires that all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or sub-contractors to work 
on construction projects financed by federal assistance must be paid wages not less than those 
established for the locality of the project by the Secretary of Labor). 

E. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-
330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). (Construction 
contracts awarded by the Local Agency’s in excess of $2,000, and in excess of $2,500 for other 
contracts which involve the employment of mechanics or laborers). 

F. Clear Air Act 
Standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clear Air Act (42 U.S.C. 
1857(h), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368). Executive Order 11738, and 
Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR Part 15) (contracts, subcontracts, and 
sub-Agreements of amounts in excess of $100,000). 

G. Energy Policy and Conservation Act  
Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state 
energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
(Pub. L. 94-163). 

H. OMB Circulars 



  

 
Page 2 of 3 

Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-87, A-21 or A-122, and A-102 or A-110, 
whichever is applicable. 

I. Hatch Act 
The Hatch Act (5 USC 1501-1508) and Public Law 95-454 Section 4728. These statutes state 
that federal funds cannot be used for partisan political purposes of any kind by any person or 
organization involved in the administration of federally-assisted programs. 

J. Nondiscrimination 
42 USC 6101 et seq. 42 USC 2000d, 29 USC 794, and implementing regulation, 45 C.F.R. Part 
80 et. seq. These acts require that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national 
origin, age, or handicap, be excluded from participation in or be subjected to discrimination in 
any program or activity funded, in whole or part, by federal funds. 

K. ADA 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336; 42 USC 12101, 12102, 12111-12117, 
12131-12134, 12141-12150, 12161-12165, 12181-12189, 12201-12213 47 USC 225 and 47 
USC 611. 

L. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 
The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act, as amended 
(Public Law 91-646, as amended and Public Law 100-17, 101 Stat. 246-256). (If the contractor 
is acquiring real property and displacing households or businesses in the performance of the 
Agreement). 

M. Drug-Free Workplace Act 
The Drug-Free Workplace Act (Public Law 100-690 Title V, subtitle D, 41 USC 701 et seq.). 

N. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. Sections 6101 et. seq. and its implementing 
regulation, 45 C.F.R. Part 91; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794, as 
amended, and implementing regulation 45 C.F.R. Part 84. 

O. 23 C.F.R. Part 172 
23 C.F.R. Part 172, concerning "Administration of Engineering and Design Related Contracts". 

P. 23 C.F.R Part 633 
23 C.F.R Part 633, concerning "Required Contract Provisions for Federal-Aid Construction 
Contracts". 

Q. 23 C.F.R. Part 635 
23 C.F.R. Part 635, concerning "Construction and Maintenance Provisions". 

R. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 162(a) of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 
1973 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 162(a) of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973. The 
requirements for which are shown in the Nondiscrimination Provisions, which are attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. 

S. Nondiscrimination Provisions: 
In compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and with Section 162(a) of the Federal 
Aid Highway Act of 1973, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest, 
agree as follows: 

i. Compliance with Regulations 
The Contractor will comply with the Regulations of the Department of Transportation relative 
to nondiscrimination in Federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation 
(Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations"), 
which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

ii. Nondiscrimination  
The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it after award and prior to completion of 
the contract work, will not discriminate on the ground of race, color, sex, mental or physical 
handicap or national origin in the selection and retention of Subcontractors, including 



  

 
Page 3 of 3 

procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate either 
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, 
including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix C 
of the Regulations. 

iii. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and 
Equipment 

In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for 
work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or equipment, 
each potential Subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the 
Contractor's obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to 
nondiscrimination on the ground of race, color, sex, mental or physical handicap or national 
origin. 

iv. Information and Reports 
The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or orders 
and instructions issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by the State or 
the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and 
instructions. Where any information required of the Contractor is in the exclusive possession 
of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the 
State, or the FHWA as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain 
the information. 

v. Sanctions for Noncompliance  
In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this 
Agreement, the State shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine 
to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: a. Withholding of payments to the Contractor 
under the contract until the Contractor complies, and/or b. Cancellation, termination or 
suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

T. Incorporation of Provisions §22  
The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs A through F in every subcontract, 
including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, 
orders, or instructions issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor will take such action with respect 
to any subcontract or procurement as the State or the FHWA may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that, in the 
event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a Subcontractor 
or supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the State to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interest of the State and in addition, the Contractor may request the 
FHWA to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 



  

Page 1 of 4 

 

38. EXHIBIT K – SUPPLEMENTAL FEDERAL PROVISIONS 
 

State of Colorado 
Supplemental Provisions for 

Federally Funded Contracts, Grants, and Purchase Orders  
Subject to  

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), As Amended  
Revised as of 3-20-13 

 
The contract, grant, or purchase order to which these Supplemental Provisions are attached has been funded, 
in whole or in part, with an Award of Federal funds. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of these 
Supplemental Provisions, the Special Provisions, the contract or any attachments or exhibits incorporated into 
and made a part of the contract, the provisions of these Supplemental Provisions shall control. 

1. Definitions. For the purposes of these Supplemental Provisions, the following terms shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them below. 

1.1. “Award” means an award of Federal financial assistance that a non-Federal Entity receives or 
administers in the form of: 

1.1.1. Grants; 
1.1.2. Contracts; 
1.1.3. Cooperative agreements, which do not include cooperative research and development 

agreements (CRDA) pursuant to the Federal Technology Transfer Act of 1986, as 
amended (15 U.S.C. 3710); 

1.1.4. Loans;  
1.1.5. Loan Guarantees; 
1.1.6. Subsidies; 
1.1.7. Insurance; 
1.1.8. Food commodities;  
1.1.9. Direct appropriations;  
1.1.10. Assessed and voluntary contributions; and 
1.1.11. Other financial assistance transactions that authorize the expenditure of Federal funds by 

non-Federal Entities. 

Award does not include: 

1.1.12. Technical assistance, which provides services in lieu of money; 
1.1.13. A transfer of title to Federally-owned property provided in lieu of money; even if the award 

is called a grant;  
1.1.14. Any award classified for security purposes; or 
1.1.15. Any award funded in whole or in part with Recovery funds, as defined in section 1512 of 

the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009 (Public Law 111-5). 

1.2. “Contract” means the contract to which these Supplemental Provisions are attached and includes all 
Award types in §1.1.1 through 1.1.11 above. 

1.3. “Contractor” means the party or parties to a Contract funded, in whole or in part, with Federal 
financial assistance, other than the Prime Recipient, and includes grantees, subgrantees, 
Subrecipients, and borrowers.  For purposes of Transparency Act reporting, Contractor does not 
include Vendors.  

1.4. “Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number” means the nine-digit number established 
and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc. to uniquely identify a business entity.  Dun and Bradstreet’s 
website may be found at: http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform. 

1.5. “Entity” means all of the following as defined at 2 CFR part 25, subpart C; 

1.5.1. A governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian Tribe; 
1.5.2. A foreign public entity;  
1.5.3. A domestic or foreign non-profit organization; 

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform


  

Page 2 of 4 

 

1.5.4. A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; and 
1.5.5. A Federal agency, but only a Subrecipient under an Award or Subaward to a non-Federal 

entity. 

1.6. “Executive” means an officer, managing partner or any other employee in a management position. 

1.7. “Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)” means an Award number assigned by a Federal 
agency to a Prime Recipient. 

1.8. “FFATA” means the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Public Law 109-
282), as amended by §6202 of Public Law 110-252.  FFATA, as amended, also is referred to as the 
“Transparency Act.” 

1.9. “Prime Recipient” means a Colorado State agency or institution of higher education that receives an 
Award. 

1.10.  “Subaward” means a legal instrument pursuant to which a Prime Recipient of Award funds awards 
all or a portion of such funds to a Subrecipient, in exchange for the Subrecipient’s support in the 
performance of all or any portion of the substantive project or program for which the Award was 
granted. 

1.11. “Subrecipient” means a non-Federal Entity (or a Federal agency under an Award or Subaward to a 
non-Federal Entity) receiving Federal funds through a Prime Recipient to support the performance of 
the Federal project or program for which the Federal funds were awarded. A Subrecipient is subject to 
the terms and conditions of the Federal Award to the Prime Recipient, including program compliance 
requirements. The term “Subrecipient” includes and may be referred to as Subgrantee. 

1.12. “Subrecipient Parent DUNS Number” means the subrecipient parent organization’s 9-digit Data 
Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number that appears in the subrecipient’s System for Award 
Management (SAM) profile, if applicable. 

1.13. “Supplemental Provisions” means these Supplemental Provisions for Federally Funded Contracts, 
Grants, and Purchase Orders subject to the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 
2006, As Amended, as may be revised pursuant to ongoing guidance from the relevant Federal or 
State of Colorado agency or institution of higher education. 

1.14. “System for Award Management (SAM)” means the Federal repository into which an Entity must 
enter the information required under the Transparency Act, which may be found at 
http://www.sam.gov. 

1.15.  “Total Compensation” means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by an Executive during the 
Prime Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s preceding fiscal year and includes the following: 

1.15.1. Salary and bonus; 
1.15.2. Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights, using  the dollar amount 

recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in 
accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 
2005) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments; 

1.15.3. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans, not including group life, health, 
hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of 
Executives and are available generally to all salaried employees; 

1.15.4. Change in present value of defined benefit and actuarial pension plans; 
1.15.5. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified;  
1.15.6. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation (e.g. 

severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the employee, 
perquisites or property) for the Executive exceeds $10,000. 

1.16. “Transparency Act” means the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Public 
Law 109-282), as amended by §6202 of Public Law 110-252.  The Transparency Act also is referred 
to as FFATA.  

1.17  “Vendor” means a dealer, distributor, merchant or other seller providing property or services required 
for a project or program funded by an Award. A Vendor is not a Prime Recipient or a Subrecipient and 



  

Page 3 of 4 

 

is not subject to the terms and conditions of the Federal award.  Program compliance requirements do 
not pass through to a Vendor.  

2. Compliance. Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Transparency Act and the 
regulations issued pursuant thereto, including but not limited to these Supplemental Provisions. Any 
revisions to such provisions or regulations shall automatically become a part of these Supplemental 
Provisions, without the necessity of either party executing any further instrument. The State of Colorado 
may provide written notification to Contractor of such revisions, but such notice shall not be a condition 
precedent to the effectiveness of such revisions. 

3. System for Award Management (SAM) and Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Requirements.   

3.1. SAM. Contractor shall maintain the currency of its information in SAM until the Contractor submits the 
final financial report required under the Award or receives final payment, whichever is later.  
Contractor shall review and update SAM information at least annually after the initial registration, and 
more frequently if required by changes in its information. 

3.2. DUNS. Contractor shall provide its DUNS number to its Prime Recipient, and shall update 
Contractor’s information in Dun & Bradstreet, Inc. at least annually after the initial registration, and 
more frequently if required by changes in Contractor’s information. 

4. Total Compensation. Contractor shall include Total Compensation in SAM for each of its five most highly 
compensated Executives for the preceding fiscal year if:  

4.1. The total Federal funding authorized to date under the Award is $25,000 or more; and 

4.2. In the preceding fiscal year, Contractor received: 

4.2.1. 80% or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts and 
subcontracts and/or Federal financial assistance Awards or Subawards subject to the 
Transparency Act; and 

4.2.2. $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts and 
subcontracts and/or Federal financial assistance Awards or Subawards subject to the 
Transparency Act; and 

4.3. The public does not have access to information about the compensation of such Executives through 
periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 
78m(a), 78o(d) or § 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 

5. Reporting. Contractor shall report data elements to  SAM and to the Prime Recipient as required in §7 
below if Contractor is a Subrecipient for the Award pursuant to the Transparency Act.  No direct payment 
shall be made to Contractor for providing any reports required under these Supplemental Provisions and the 
cost of producing such reports shall be included in the Contract price.  The reporting requirements in §7 
below are based on guidance from the US Office of Management and Budget (OMB), and as such are 
subject to change at any time by OMB.  Any such changes shall be automatically incorporated into this 
Contract and shall become part of Contractor’s obligations under this Contract, as provided in §2 above. 
The Colorado Office of the State Controller will provide summaries of revised OMB reporting requirements 
at http://www.colorado.gov/dpa/dfp/sco/FFATA.htm. 

6. Effective Date and Dollar Threshold for Reporting. The effective date of these Supplemental Provisions 
apply to new Awards as of October 1, 2010.  Reporting requirements in §7 below apply to new Awards as of 
October 1, 2010, if the initial award is $25,000 or more.  If the initial Award is below $25,000 but subsequent 
Award modifications result in a total Award of $25,000 or more, the Award is subject to the reporting 
requirements as of the date the Award exceeds $25,000.  If the initial Award is $25,000 or more, but funding 
is subsequently de-obligated such that the total award amount falls below $25,000, the Award shall continue 
to be subject to the reporting requirements. 

7. Subrecipient Reporting Requirements. If Contractor is a Subrecipient, Contractor shall report as set forth 
below.  



  

Page 4 of 4 

 

7.1 ToSAM.  A Subrecipient shall register in SAM and report the following data elements in SAM for each 
Federal Award Identification Number no later than the end of the month following the month in which 
the Subaward was made: 

7.1.1 Subrecipient DUNS Number; 

7.1.2 Subrecipient DUNS Number + 4 if more than one electronic funds transfer (EFT) account; 

7.1.3 Subrecipient Parent DUNS Number;  

7.1.4 Subrecipient’s address, including: Street Address, City, State, Country, Zip + 4, and 
Congressional District; 

7.1.5 Subrecipient’s top 5 most highly compensated Executives if the criteria in §4 above are 
met; and 

7.1.6 Subrecipient’s Total Compensation of top 5 most highly compensated Executives if 
criteria in §4 above met. 

7.2 To Prime Recipient.  A Subrecipient shall report to its Prime Recipient, upon the effective date of the 
Contract, the following data elements: 

7.2.1  Subrecipient’s DUNS Number as registered in SAM.  

7.2.2     Primary Place of Performance Information, including: Street Address, City, State, 
Country, Zip code + 4, and Congressional District.   

8. Exemptions.  

8.1. These Supplemental Provisions do not apply to an individual who receives an Award as a natural 
person, unrelated to any business or non-profit organization he or she may own or operate in his or 
her name.  

8.2   A Contractor with gross income from all sources of less than $300,000 in the previous tax year is 
exempt from the requirements to report Subawards and the Total Compensation of its most highly 
compensated Executives. 

8.3   Effective October 1, 2010, “Award” currently means a grant, cooperative agreement, or other 
arrangement as defined in Section 1.1 of these Special Provisions. On future dates “Award” may 
include other items to be specified by OMB in policy memoranda available at the OMB Web site; 
Award also will include other types of Awards subject to the Transparency Act.  

8.4   There are no Transparency Act reporting requirements for Vendors. 

 

Event of Default. Failure to comply with these Supplemental Provisions shall constitute an event of default 
under the Contract and the State of Colorado may terminate the Contract upon 30 days prior written notice if 
the default remains uncured five calendar days following the termination of the 30 day notice period. This 
remedy will be in addition to any other remedy available to the State of Colorado under the Contract, at law 
or in equity. 

 



 
 

  
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: January 19, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.E 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution No. 10-2016 Authorizing the Application 

for a planning Grant from the Colorado Department of Local 
Affairs to assist with flood mitigation work at the Highway 85 and 
Highway 60 bridges  

 
PRESENTED BY: Chad Reischl, City Planner/Kacey Blum, Watershed Coordinator 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
As the fiscal sponsor of the Middle South Platte River Alliance (MSPRA), the City of Evans is 
seeking to apply for CDBG-DR funds for construction of flood mitigation work at the Highway 
85 Bridge and the Highway 60 Bridge  
 
These projects will work to increase flow capacity at both bridges through sediment and debris 
removal, as well as stabilize eroding river banks. The work at Highway 85 will be completely 
funded by this grant and include, among other things, streambank stabilization on City of Evans 
property east of the Bridge. The Highway 60 project will be funded primarily by a joint 
agreement between the Natural Resources Conservation Board and the Colorado Water 
Conservation Board. This grant application asks for the 12.5% match required by a local sponsor 
(i.e. MSPRA).   
 
The grant applications for these two projects will total $873,000 for which the Alliance and the 
City of Evans will be fully reimbursed. 
 

BACKGROUND: 

This is the State of Colorado’s third round of CDBG-DR funding for planning projects related to 
the 2013 flood. The state has specifically allocated some of the funding to support watershed 
resiliency projects. Last year the City of Evans, with the support of the Colorado Water 
Conservation Board and the Department of Local Affairs, worked to form a river stakeholder 
group now known as the Middle South Platte River Alliance. The Alliance, with the City of 
Evans as its fiscal sponsor has guided the drafting of the South Platte River Restoration Master 
Plan which was approved earlier this year.   

The restoration master plan identified 16 flood resiliency projects along the 20+ mile river 
corridor. Many of these projects involved pieces of critical infrastructure such as bridges and 
diversion structures. Both the Highway 85 and Highway 60 Bridges were on this project list. 



 
 

Working to mitigate flood risk at the Highway 85 Bridge has been one of the number one 
priorities of the Alliance since its inception. This project will work to remove sediment and 
debris from the bridge while re-creating an over-flow channel south of the main channel to help 
move more water and sediment through the structure. The project will also work on stabilizing 
the north bank of the river which has migrated 8-12’ inland since the 2013 flood. Much of the 
bank to be stabilized will be on City of Evans Property. The project is estimated to cost 
$800,000. 

The Highway 60 project was a lesser priority for the Alliance but has come to the forefront of 
projects as CDOT will be replacing the bridge in the near future. While CDOT will be doing 
work in the river as part of the bridge construction, they cannot do work outside their designated 
right-of-way. CDOT felt that it did not make sense to stop work at the right-of-way line as the 
needed bank stabilization and sediment removal extended both up and downstream from the 
bridge. CDOT and the Alliance therefore worked together to request money and design services 
through a joint project of the Natural Resources Conservation Service and the Colorado Water 
Conservation Board. The NRCS and CWCB have agreed to take on the project but require a 
12.5% match from a local sponsor. CDBG-DR funds can be used for this match and therefore the 
Alliance is asking for $73,000 to complete the project in anticipation of the new bridge.   

 
FINANCIAL: 
While the cost of this project will be fully reimbursed by the CDBG-DR grant it is expected that 
the city will incur some minor in-kind expense as a small portion of staff time may be needed to 
coordinate financial and grant management of the project with the Alliance.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
  
The City of Evans staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10-2016 for 
the flood mitigation work at the Highway 85 and Highway 60 bridges 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
“I move to approve Resolution No. 10-2016.” 
 
“I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 10-2016” 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 10-2016 
 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE COLORADO 
DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS’ CDBG-DR GRANT PROGRAM TO ASSIST WITH 

FLOOD MITIGATION WORK AT THE HIGHWAY 85 AND HIGHWAY 60 BRIDGES 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Evans supports the need to complete flood mitigation work 
along the South Platte River in the Evans area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Evans has worked with the Colorado Water Conservation Board 
to create a Restoration Master Plan for the South Platte River in Weld County wherein the Lower 
Latham Ditch Diversion Structure was noted as an issue of serious concern; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Middle South Platte River Alliance (MSPRA) has been formed to 
oversee and manage that restoration plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Evans is a founding member and fiscal agent for the Middle 

South Platte River Alliance; and 
 

WHEREAS, MSPRA has identified the Highway 85 Bridge project as a top priority for 
their organization at this time; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Highway 60 Bridge project will be timely and concurrent with 

construction of a new bridge and primarily funded through monies provided by the NRCS, and 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs is administering the 
CDBG-DR grant funds for watershed recovery projects in the area. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 

1. The City Council hereby supports the CDBG-DR grant application for $800,000 from the 
State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs for the Highway 80 Bridge Project 
and $73,000 for the Highway 60 Bridge Project. 

 
2. The City Council of the City of Evans acknowledges that while the grant application does 

not mandate matching funds the City of Evans will need to allocate a small share of 
staff resources to fulfill the terms and obligations of said grant if awarded. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 19TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 



COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: January 19, 2016 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.F

SUBJECT: 2016 Greeley Evans Transit (GET) Operating & Capital Costs 

PRESENTED BY: Dawn Anderson, City Engineer 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

On July 2, 2013 the City of Evans and City of Greeley entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
regarding transit services provided in Evans.  Each year the City of Greeley provides Evans with the 
current operating and capital costs based off of the City of Greeley’s budget and account for City of Evans’ 
local share to the federal grants received for services provided within Evans and to the residents of Evans.   

The below costs were provided and are based upon budgetary, ridership and hours of service projections 
and represent only the local match needed to provide the service.   

Service Unit Type 2016 Projection Cost 
Fixed Route % of System           9.39% $ 329,006 
Paratransit/Demand Response % of Service           5.72%   $ 53,258 
2016 Vehicle Local Match   $ 18,021 
Less:  Fare Box - $ 35,305
Less:  Grants Funds - $ 202,205
Total Cost  $ 162,774 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

The 2016 General Fund Streets budget included $183,954 for these professional services.  

• Streets General Fund 11-41-4101-8320 – $183,954

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve the 2016 Operating and Capital costs for transit service in the 
amount of $ 162,774.   

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

“ I move to approve the Greeley Evans Transit 2016 Operating and Capital Costs for services in 
Evans in the amount of $162,774.00.”  

“ I move to deny approval of the Greeley Evans Transit 2016 Operating and Capital Costs.”



City Manager - Monitoring Report
January 19, 2016 

Below is a compellation of updates and projects that are either new 
or have changed since the last City Council meeting. 

 Communications 

The new website has launched! Our previous website is no longer available and  
evanscolorado.gov takes one to the new site. The first wave of “tire kickers” as John 
would say, are staff and City Council. We are grateful for the additional eyes on the 
site to help identify links that may have broken in the switch and glitches with 
mobile devices. We will work through those issues for two weeks and then start the 
big shout outs to drive people to the new site. 

Another video opportunity – this one FREE – has come to us. CGI Communications is 
working with Weld County to provide professionally done marketing videos on their 

website. Evans will be one of the communities that will be highlighted in this series. You can learn about CGI on their 
website at http://www.cgicompany.com , see some of their work on the Weld County site http://www.co.weld.us and 
see the videos they have produced at the bottom of the page under video tour. 

 Community Development

Non-Residential Construction Projects 
In Progress 

Project Type Location Description Stage 
A Prairie Heights Middle 

School 
Commercial 3737 65th Ave. New Middle School to 

replace John Evans 
Complete, Right of 

Way Recorded 
B America’s Best Value 

Inn 
Remodel 800 31st St. Remodeling 

Bar/Restaurant area into 
8 hotel rooms 

Under construction 

D Evans VFW Building 
Addition 

3501 State Street 1200 Sq. Ft. Shed Under construction 

F Harvest Time 
Tabernacle Inc 

Building 
Addition 

3040 11th Avenue Adding on an additional 
room 

Under construction 

H Evans Fast Break Remodel 1100 42nd Street Removing a wall and 
moving an exit door 

Under construction 

http://www.cgicompany.com/
http://www.co.weld.us/


I ARB Midstream Commercial 
Development 

7300 47th Avenue Building an railcar oil 
transfer facility 

Under construction 

J Heritage Inn Building 
Addition 

3301 West Service Rd Upgrade commercial fire 
alarm system 

Under construction 

K Humane Society of Weld 
County 

Remodel 1620 42nd Street Office area remodel Under construction 

Building Department 
Construction Activity Comparative Analysis 

December 
2015 

December 
2014 

YTD 
2015 

YTD 
2014 

New Single 
Family Dwelling 
Units 

# of Permits 
 Valuation 

4 
572,337 

2 
367,452 

47 
8,064,366 

32 
5,498,633 

Single Family 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 3 0 16 7 

New Multi-
Family 
Dwellings Units 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 0 0 0 

Multi-Family 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 0 0 0 

Residential 
Additions 
and Remodels 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

7 
74,918 

10 
99,272 

160 
1,438,729 

149 
1,306,711 

New Commercial 
Projects 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 0 1 
400,000 

10 
6,804,462 

Commercial 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 0 0 0 

Commercial 
Additions and 
Remodels 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 1 
22,914 

25 
1,239,173 

23 
615,414 

Miscellaneous 
Permits 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

14 
34,940 

20 
86,311 

239 
867,051 

515 
2,696,972 

Mobile Home 
Permits 

# of Permits 2 2 68 82 



TOTALS # of Permits 
Valuation 

30 
682,195 

35 
575,949 

556 
12,009,319 

818 
16,922,192 

Building Department 
Construction Activity Comparative Analysis 

Year 
2015 

Year 
2014 

New Single 
Family Dwelling 
Units 

# of Permits 
 Valuation 

47 
8,064,366 

32 
5,498,633 

Single Family 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 16 7 

New Multi-
Family 
Dwellings Units 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 0 

Multi-Family 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 0 

Residential 
Additions 
and Remodels 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

160 
1,438,729 

149 
1,306,711 

New Commercial 
Projects 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

1 
400,000 

10 
6,804,462 

Commercial 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 0 

Commercial 
Additions and 
Remodels 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

25 
1,239,173 

23 
615,414 

Miscellaneous 
Permits 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

239 
867,051 

515 
2,696,972 

Mobile Home 
Permits 

# of Permits 68 82 

TOTALS # of Permits 
Valuation 

556 
12,009,319 

818 
16,922,192 



 Finance 

Please find the preliminary November sales tax update below.  Year-to-date Actual vs. Budget, we are $814,183 
ahead. 

As far as the monthly projection goes, we are $114,724 short of what we needed to collect this month to meet 
our annual budget. This does not include motor vehicle tax. Weld County has changed the timing of the tax 
distribution, therefore, as we receive information, we will be issuing a final sales tax report for November that 
includes motor vehicle tax.   

Category 2014 YTD 2015 YTD % Change
Base 2,137,392     2,305,403       8%
Commercial 1,797,054    1,756,605        -2%
Industrial 2,588,694   1,647,001        -36%
Utilities 670,114        656,098          -2%

November 2015

November 2015
Lodging 91,818          92,412             1%



 Police
Officer Juan Rodriguez was sworn in on Monday January 11th. He will complete his training program in 
early May.

Recruit Officer Jason Schissler started the Adams County Sheriff’s Office Training Academy on Monday 
January 11th, as well. He is scheduled to graduate in mid-June at which time he will begin his 16-week 
training program.

We have four officers currently in the field training program; Officer Schuett is scheduled to 
complete his training in mid-February. Officers Pacheco and Williams are scheduled to complete their 
training in mid-March, and Officer Rodriguez who is mentioned above.

We have a hiring process open currently for two certified peace officer positions and hope to 
complete hiring by the end of February. Those two hiring’s will bring the police department to 
authorized strength, for the first time in well over a year!

We have had a tremendous response to our new Animal Control/Services Technician position. 
We received a large number of applications from highly qualified and experienced individuals and 
hope to fill the positon by mid-February.

The Police Department was recently awarded accredited status from the Colorado Association of Chiefs 
of Police. A formal presentation of the award will be scheduled before Council as soon as possible. Being 
accredited signifies that the police department has met all of the requirements demonstrating that 
our policies and procedures comply with best practices in policing. 


	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	6.A Approval of Minutes
	01.05.2016 Draft Meeting Minutes

	6.B Economic Incentives Ordinance
	Codes Being Repealed
	Ordinance 643-16


	OLD BUSINESS
	7.A Impact Fee Ordinance
	Fire and Park Impact Fee Language - Red Line ST
	Impact Fee Ordinance FINAL


	NEW BUSINESS
	8.A Flood Hazard Area Ordinance
	Ordinance 644-16 - Floodplain Hazard Areas

	8.B Election Deadline Ordinance
	Redline changes to CHAPTER 1.14 – Elections
	Ord 645-16 Election Deadline Changes-SPK

	8.C Staff Report - Authorizing Mail Ballot Election
	Resolution No. 08-2016 amending Res. No. 06-2016 - regarding date of election

	8.D IGA with CDOT for 35th Avenue
	Resolution 09-2016 - CDOT IGA to Widen 35th Ave.
	R4-IGA-Evans FULL
	Exhibits A-K (1)


	8.E CDBG-DR grants for SPR
	Reso 10-2016 CDBG-DR - Grants for SPR

	8.F GET IGA - 2016 Fees
	COUNCIL COMMUNICATION
	AGENDA ITEM:  8.F
	AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
	RECOMMENDATION:
	SUGGESTED MOTIONS:
	“I move to deny approval of the Greeley Evans Transit 2016 Operating and Capital Costs.”


	REPORTS
	1-19-16 Monitoring Report

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURNMENT
	8.E CDBG-DR grants for SPR combined.pdf
	8.E CDBG-DR grants for SPR
	Reso 10-2016 CDBG-DR - Grants for SPR




